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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

S 5 41k 22

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Y 5 g
Audited results for

the year ended 30th April,
BRENMA=1-HIEEZ Increase
REER (decrease)
2011 2010 e
E S S e S 250 ()
Turnover ( HK$'000) BEE (THT) 353,998 325,287 28,711

(Loss) profit for the year AAERE (F48) Ui A
(HKS'000) (FHT) (13,153) 23,551 (36,704)

(Loss) earnings per share B (1) B A

(HKS) (T 0.02) 0.03 (0.05)
EBITDA (HKS$'000) EBITDA (T#7C)
(Note 1) (Kfzt1) 3,184 39,316 (36,132)
(Audited) (Audited)
As at As at
30th April, 30th April,
2011 2010
(BER) (B8FH%)
R R——4R i S S Increase
WAH=1+H WH=+H HAm
Net debt gearing ratio (%) FABEA R %)
(Note 2) (Wtt2) 28% 0% 28%

Notes : Mt -

1. Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA”) 1. FRALE ~ BLHE ~ 378 LRI RTZ A (TEBITDA )
is computed as (loss) profit before tax plus depreciation, share-based Ty ABEBRT U5 48) s A > ey ~ DU A 2Lt
payments expense, the provision of inventories and bad and doubtful ZATERBA S ~ A7 BOR SR - BB RUA ~ I
debits, finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an associate, {HEE1E ~ RS A - AT e ik 2 F)
interest income for convertible preferred shares and losses arising from B B AT A 4 R DA E S8 B 7 A 2 85
changes in fair value of derivative financial instruments. B

2. Net debt gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including borrowings, 2. A EAR R 2w 2 A A (RS
obligations under finance leases, trust receipt loans and bills payables less RlEEAR A RYE - {5 ST SR S AT 20 ) R
bank balances and cash over shareholders’ equity. TG 0% S BLG bR DL SRR 25~
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GEOGRAPHICAL LOCATIONS AND

TURNOVER ANALYSIS
[ J = SR AT

GEOGRAPHICAL TURNOVER ANALYSIS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30TH APRIL, 2011
AND 2010 (%)
BEZF R F RN IR Z I8 5B (%)

TURNOVER ANALYSIS BY PERCENTAGE
H&H 2 AR 2 BB
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BUSINESS REVIEW
On behalf of the Board of Directors, I hereby present to shareholders the

results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2011.

With the improvement of the global economy since 2009, particularly in
the consumer electronics and automobile sectors, demand for
semiconductors and related products has showed continuing
improvement and the Group has been able to expand its market, and the
turnover of the Group grew by 8.8% to HK$353,998,000 (2010:
HK$325,287,000). Despite that, the Group faced a challenging operating
environment due to the rapidly rising material costs and inflationary
pressures in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) which had a
direct impact on the operating performance of the Group. The price of
copper and silver in April 2011 has increased by more than 27% and 160%
respectively since April 2010. In addition, the increase in the minimum
wage of more than 42% in May 2010 and March 2011 in the PRC
required the Group to raise wages for both workers and supporting staff
at our operations in the PRC. The continuing appreciation of Renminbi
further intensified the impact of the rise of minimum wages and other
operating costs for our production site in the PRC. The weakening US
dollar against Japanese Yen and Euro also had a negative impact on our
costs for materials imported from Japan and Europe resulting in the
incurrence of an exchange loss. As a result, the Group incurred a net loss
of HK$13,153,000 (2010: net profit of HK$23,551,000).

Although the Group was able to capture growth in the market for
semiconductors, a significant surge in material costs, increase of minimum
wages of the PRC since May 2010 and inflationary pressure fuelled higher
operating costs in the PRC towards the second half of the financial year
thereby affecting our profitability. The delay in transferring the increased
materials and operating costs in full to the selling price during the second
half of the financial year eroded badly the profitability and resulted in a
higher ratio to 55% of materials and consumable used to turnover.
Subsequently since March 2011, the Group has been able to adjust the
cost and price structure and the Group has been able to pass on some of
the rising costs in materials and operating overheads to these customers
with which it has an established business relationship so that the profit
margin improved and the Group has achieved operating profits since
April 2011.

S0 Wl
AL HE T 1 R AR % —
—4EPH ] = H IR S

Bl R ERACTE 9 T JUERA TGS > FRALETE
TN A MR EATEE o AR AR B E TR
SRFFME - AEEMGUB AT » UEAREE
BN 8.8% 5 353,998,0007 I ( — & —F4E

325,287,00045 70) © A UL > R R R AR AN AR
Th B e N RICAE ([P ) iR > B
AKEE W AR B > AR [ T S TR PR R Y 8
BIREE o N F A > SRR ER H F
— ZZAE U AL 43 Al 8 #827% S 160% o BLAb
P AR L —F—FFE A R R ——F=
Aoyl L THB A2, > A A SE 75 5 4 v B SE 51
TAKTIENE NG o NEWIETHE > E—4
JE A 45 9 DR B A1 10 b T e B e S At
A LT R o S0 H T MR R
ISR EHE 1 EH A R 0 4R A R K T
M DI REESTE - I > AREEESEIR
1 AH 13,153,000 70 (= F—2F 4 1 ¥ F)23,551,000
WD) o

HEEA L A RE MR TR 20 -
MRS A BEEE Lo ~ B A =% — %4 A R
PR AR TR o T 2R R g 4T B B4 B S AR P
1 T R A B T o R PR 2R 2 S A A I L E )
SRR o T B IBUAR JBE T A A S B A ) B AR
3 e S O R B AR I S5 B AU RE S
ST DR BT FE AR S SE R LA | TR
55%  HIE A —F——4F=Af » AEHCRMHE
JRAS BB A > ELAS SR A5 UK 0 40 A B L THRY
Wht B A B SR BELAR AR I S5 R AR R ] 2
FE B BF - ENA R AREEZA
T A5 LABIC 3 B R A R A -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EViE

Due to the continuing rebound in market demand for semiconductors
and leadframes, the Group achieved a growth in turnover by 8.8% to
approximately HK$353,998,000 (2010: HK$325,287,000) for the year
ended 30th April, 2011. However, it was challenging for the Group to
maintain the same profitability as the last financial year in an operating
environment with rising materials and operating costs in the PRC. As a
result, the Group incurred a net loss attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$13,153,000, compared to a consolidated net profit
of HK$23,551,000 for the year ended 30th April, 2010. During the year,
the steady appreciation of Renminbi and weakening US dollar resulted in
the exchange loss of HK$4,200,000 against the exchange loss of
HK$1,726,000 for the financial year ended 30th April, 2010. The financial
results of the Group was also impacted by the non-cash expenses
including share-based payment of HK$750,000 (2010: HK$3,010,000), a
one off impairment loss on balances with a former subsidiary of
HK$2,342,000 (2010: Nil), provision for inventories, bad and doubtful
debts of HK$469,000 (2010: reverse of the provision HK$465,000). The
adjusted EBITDA, computed as (loss) profit before tax plus depreciation,
finance costs, impairment losses, share of loss of an associate, interest
income for convertible preferred shares and losses arising from changes in
fair value of derivative financial instruments, amounted to HK$3,184,000
(2010: EBITDA of HK$39,316,000). Loss per share was HK$0.02 for the
financial year ended 30th April, 2011 compared with earnings per share
of HK$0.03 for the financial year ended 30th April, 2010.

The Group’s gearing ratio, calculated as bank and other borrowings less
cash and cash equivalents divided by shareholder’s equity as at 30th April,
2011 was around 28% (2010: Nil).

OUTLOOK

The Group continues to operate in a challenging environment as
operating costs in the PRC are expected to increase further in the coming
financial year. Material costs will continue to be at a high level with
volatility given high commodity prices and projected inflationary
pressure. The further rise of minimum wages in the PRC will impact our
costs in the coming financial year.

F A A T S ARAE 2 T 5 T R R IR T - AR
B#zE —F——4ENA =+ 0 ILEFR S LM
HEFF8.8% » #££9353,998,000 3 7 ( " EHE —F 4 ¢
325,287,00045 70) o SR > § A v Bl ) ) I 7 48 i
ARG BT B HEIR BT > B4R B AW S AR B A
A 2 A SR B 5 A B PR o Ik > A4
9] B A5 A2 T RE £ 1 R A\ s 480 48113,153,000 %%
JC > MEE - F—FFENA =+ HIEFEA A4
A1 F)23,551,000% 00  FAAFRE > RS T
> B EES > &R T SE184,200,0003#
JC > M E —F—FAEN A =+ H 1k AR 2 TR
SaREHERN251,726,00085 0 o ARGE [ 2 A HS SEAETR %2
RGP 2 2 AR DL B FE R 2 A5 3K B 5
750,000 € (- F—F4F 1 3,010,000% 1) ~ H—
G T P 2 W) A5 B 1Y — YR BB 9812, 342,000% 7T
(CZF—FF ) ~ 1718 BORBERIE 5 469,000 35
T ( E A B 465,000 T0) o 8
EBITDA T ZFRBLRT k518 &6 A > Hmres ~ @l
A~ SRERGIE - AR A F R 1~ TR
itz FE A B AT AR 4 T T 5L P 58 B s 28 B s
HFHE > 3,184,000 50 (—F—F4E  EBITDA
$539,316,000%70) - #E ~F——4EWH=+H 1k
A A IS 4R 550,028 00 > T E T —FTA4F
VU H = H b BB A A A I 50,035 0T -

RoFE——4ENHZ1H > AEHZ BEEA R
T CASRAT B oA £ 803 2 B 4 M S ) B 4 TR P R
DU ME 2 54 B 28% (T —F4F ) o

23

FH A B 2 8 A TR A T 8 B AR S —
BEI > ASSE B AR AT I T PR YRR IR o B
T FELHIT B 200 R JBE 7 41 o i i S R A A A A
Fd > HIEEIAE « R R TEE SR eg
ARSI T A A A BE A JRAS A AR R B



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EE A

To alleviate the above unfavourable operating environment, the Groupis 451 L 7l &85 BRI () A F| R R > AREF B IE £
focusing on taking necessary initiatives to enhance production efficiency RN o B LR 0 A 2 i A sl s S

by way of improved production planning and to attain higher yields in F AR R A B B0l > FETNFEM R A [RI IRy > BEB0E
materials consumption through innovative production methodology. The — ERE#5 o A [ 7R IE 14 [ B bR B IR 4E > MO £ 13
Group is also developing new sourcing channels to find more stable FE BRI BRI P R RE o e b AR [ A e
supplies of materials with better terms. Further, the Group continues to PP AR SOE AR B > 3 AR B A TR

exercise tight control on costs and capital expenditure with a cautious BRI W E R s ME W R o AMEECET
approach in investing in connection to better production yield and R B R AT B E E R > AR TR
product quality. Re-engineering of the production process and better A2 8] PRy S v AL 1 ) R L DM BRI E T A5 T
materials planning are in place to build greater flexibility in our internal SR Wy RHE A R S o B HLE IR ISR R
operating system to adjust quickly to market demand and materials EiGHRoK > BN KB LR - 4 ANFHE

prices. The management will also monitor the market demand frequently & > #1056 B TR o @@ LL EHE i - A5 #@ e
to adjust the labour force and labour structure to achieve better staff mix Hn] F B R AR S > S 2ER R .

to enhance labour efficiency. Through the above measures, the Group

expects to minimise the cost pressure and to achieve further business

growth.

FINANCIAL REVIEW S %5 ol

During the year under review, the Group continued to maintain prudent AT A AR B > A 5 [0 4 A A i M B 45 FRIBOR o
financial management policies. As at 30th April, 2011, the Group’s total R E——4FEMA = H o AREEREEEHA
outstanding debts of HK$33,320,000 (2010: HK$17,951,000) comprised B 533,320,000 % 00 ( & — 4 1 17,951,000 #

of HK$13,358,000 (2010: HK$2,772,000) of trust receipt loans and bill TG o LR SR SR R AT TR 13,358,000
payables, HK$7,786,000 (2010: HK$4,113,000) of other bank loans, WL (B —F4F 1 2,772,000450) ~ HAbRIT &
HKS$1,637,000 (2010: HK$527,000) of finance lease and HK$10,539,000 7,786,000 70 ( —F —F4F © 4,113,000% 0) ~
(2010: HK$10,539,000) of loan from a director. In terms of interest Bl & FH 41,637,000 70 ( & —F4F 1 527,000 1
bearing, HK$22,781,000 (2010: HK$7,412,000) was interest bearing and J6) B — 44 H#H S 510,539,000 70 ( & — AR
HK$10,539,000 (2010: HK$10,539,000) was interest free. 10,539,000 %5 t.) ° #E7HE I » 22,781,000 # JG

(= F—F4E 0 7412,00000) Bt BAER > 5
10,539,00035 70 ( —F—F4F 1 10,539,000%5 7C) £ %
B o

The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the total current R E—— A = H o R S SRR DL

assets by the total current liabilities, was approximately 1.3:1 as at 30th ARG AL B IR 513 0 1( 2
April, 2011 (2010: approximately 1.6:1). F—FE HFH1.6:1) °

DISTRIBUTION Vigl3

The directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the FEREANERAAEE IR KW E (T —F4F
year (2010: Nil). ) o

PLEDGE OF ASSETS j gz %

As at 30th April, 2011, plant and equipment with a carrying value of A E A =1 H > IRIE{E£52,488,00045 70
HK$2,488,000 (2010: HK $5,849,000) and trade receivables with a (& —4F 0 5,.849,000%5 70) 2 HE#E Mok A SR
carrying value of HK$3,583,000 (2010: Nil) were pledged to secure certain  [A]{H /£ 3,583,0004 ¢ ( & —F4F © ) 2 E 5 [
banking facilities, bank loan and finance leases granted to the Group. SR TE AR HEAR > DIBUS R T AR SR B 2 2 TR ATl

B SRATERO A A -
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

EViE e

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30th April, 2011, the Group invested around
HK$19,954,000 (2010: HK$7,511,000) in acquiring property, plant and
equipment. This capital expenditure was financed mainly from internal
financial resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 30th April, 2011, the Group employed approximately 1,267
employees (2010: 1,364 employees). The Group maintained its
remuneration policy comprising salary and other benefits including a
share option scheme as an integral part of the Total Quality
Management.

The fees of the directors and emoluments of senior management of the
Company are determined by the Remuneration Committee and approved
by the Board, having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities
with the Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the board, I would like to take this opportunity to express
our sincere gratitude to all staff for their devotion and hard work in the
past and the valuable commitment from our business partners and
shareholders to the Group over the years.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28th July, 2011

HEABH 3
HE T ——FNA =+ HIEEE > AEBRRED
19,954,0005 7T ( — & —24F © 7,511,00045 7T ) I &
W~ AR IR o A B A B S T el R A
LT -

D L 5% P < BOR

AT WA= H s AEEE 41,2674
BB (ZF—F4E : 134518 8) - AEEBEE
AT O G O > B2 < I PR T ) 4 L A A
Ao A B dxti i BUE B ) -

AR FER 2GS KRR TN B 4 %=
B 878 AN S AN ) 2 A BB M R 3~ 473
HrN L R R T OUR BRE 37 ol S A o

3ol
ANERRE R G e 2l B TR E AL
STt A S 85 ) B B MR R A
FESE AN EAS ST PIFES I

TREE H
B33
2% [ 48

s> “F——4FtH 1+ /N\H
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
B % 1 A BN L R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS BTG

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 59, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has been W ek > BUESORE - R Z BN - 225
an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board since A B —IWJUFE— H R A AR A Rl 2 AT 3 KGR
January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive Officer of the — F & #i4T T o 2564 [ —F % \4E+ — H#IR
Company since December 2008. He is also a member of Remuneration WEATAR N AT AR, IR AR N w2 B &k
Committee of the Company. He has a B. Sc. Degree in Chemical B o A b TR By, B gl T 2
Engineering and over 28 years of experience in servicing the 28T o

semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 41, has been an Executive Director since  W#§F5624 > BF415 > H _FZF/E+ _HEH
December 2008. Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering EPUTES - SIERA SE R RATSRH RS T
from Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United FRE BT - LM TRE B RN F > R

Kingdom. Mr. Phen has over nineteen years of experience in BE SN ~ MR R I E A B TR R 1 O4F 4855 it —
semiconductor sales, services and supplies management through his FE—AEINAALEEE » ZhRER—II—FE—

previous employment with different companies in Hong Kong. Prior to JUIUTS AF 1 T R AT R AR SO A BR A W) (A2 ]
joining the Group in 2001, Mr. Phen had worked as a Customer Services 2 Bi45 /> ®]ASAT Holdings Limited 2 &2 7)) 2
Engineer and then a Deputy Director, Account Management of ASAT P g LR HAR TR - AR —Iuh
Limited, a subsidiary of ASAT Holdings Limited which is an associated PN E T T HATESMI Limited (7% A 5 51 %,
company of the Group during 1991 to 1996, and then from 1996 to 2001 SO B RS IR 2 5 BT b 2 B TSR A B
was a Sales Director at SMI Limited, a subsidiary of SDI Corporation, a ] 2 [t F ) B AR o

company incorporated in Taiwan and listed on the Taiwan Stock

Exchange.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS i 47 # g

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson, aged 55, has been an Independent Non- BB - BUESSH » I — JULIUAE+ AR A A
executive Director of the Company since October 1994. He is also the NEVBSLIFBATES - (N ARFFHMER G T
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit W /RS NRLTEGZNE -

Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Nicholson qualified as a solicitor in England and Wales in 1980 and B A — JU N A BRAS A% B S W SE A
in Hong Kong in 1982. He was a senior partner of Richards Butler from B > MBI — LN RS E R A TEAE -

1985 to 2001 where he established the corporate and commercial =N FAER BT —EM > AR AT
department. He has had wide experience in corporate finance and cross ZEFEBN > BT AN O SR RS A P
border transactions, including mergers and acquisitions, regional N o TR A FERE T 5 5528 5y LG Wi B2 Ak~ i
telecommunications, debt and equity capital markets, corporate B TR fEH G AT S~ R R
reorganizations and privatizations of stated-owned enterprises in the e N LA R B A FA A b 55 7 T R AR B o

People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Nicholson was a senior advisor to the Board of Directors of PCCW R E A R )\ H B RE AR L B
Limited, a Hong Kong-listed company, between August 2001 and AR s 1T 2 7B AR BR A R #E 2 r ve A
September 2003. He is an Independent Non-executive Director of Pacific [ o 1% 25 2 7 s b T 2 7] K19 i 78 45 [ A PR 2
Basin Shipping Limited (a Hong Kong-listed company), a Non-executive w2 B 7 HiTEFR - A _FEXHAFE+— A A

Director of India Capital Growth Fund Limited (listed on the AIM 2R 5528 7 I oy A E T 5 1T 2 India Capital
market of London Stock Exchange) since November 2005 and an Growth Fund Limited F#fT# F > g =FF =
Executive Director of First Pacific Company Limited (a Hong Kong- FERAREE — K TPHRAA (RERTB

based and Hong Kong-listed investment and management company with ¥ F 748 & RN R » T ERHEE BLE N -
principal business interests related to telecommunications, infrastructure, 7 ~ WS M M KR EHEGH) 2 MiTHESH -
consumer food products and natural resources) since June 2003. He also W TRYEAT 55— K7 i 2 JE F & W % A Wl Metro
serves as a Commissioner of PT Indofood Sukses Makmur Tbk Pacific Investments Corporation * Philex Mining
(a subsidiary of First Pacific listed in Indonesia), and as a director of First ~ Corporation * Pitkin Petroleum Plc * Forum
Pacific’s associated company in the Philippines, Metro Pacific Investments ~ Energy Plc/ Level Up! International Holdings Pte
Corporation, Philex Mining Corporation, Pitkin Petroleum Plc, Forum LtdZ # g o

Energy Plc and Level Up! International Holdings Pte Ltd.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%k



BIOGMPEICAL DETAILS QF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
S % P AR B LI AR

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert, aged 70, has been an Independent WHBIA > BIAET0RE - B EEFEN HE AR
Non-executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the NEVBSLIFPATES - INAARNTRHFEERGZ
Chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration ETE S WHEAEARAFFHME 8 & RIEL T B S
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. H o

Mr. Sze is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England S SE A 2 S B SO T R R e R A KA
and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants FH A S EES 8 > WA — MBI e T2 5%
and was a partner in an international firm of accountants with which he NBCHZER20MF - B2 KA E AR 2B 3k
practised for over 20 years. He is an Independent Non-executive Director ~ ¥ fT& 5 ©

of a number of Hong Kong listed companies.

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, aged 52, has been an Independent Non- EIRA A > BLAFES2E > A - FEFRAFEN AR AR
Executive Director of the Company since April 2000. He is also the ANTVBSLIEPATES - WA ARAFRAZEGZ
Chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit T WA AR LT B e RHE B g2k
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. H o

Mr. Wong is a certified public accountant in Hong Kong, and is the T Pe A B WL T & R R e S T 2
managing partner of C.B. Wong & Co. Certified Public Accountants. He W& A > i —ILILIL, BT AL S 5 B tF
was the Chairman of the Executive Committee of the Association of HARBOFHIATACCAFBTTHTEZEGTZ
Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) Hong Kong in 1999/2000. He w2 IR — LU R R =R AR
also served as a member of the Inland Revenue Department Users’ B RRBKERTEZ B R E - A 254
Committee from 1998 to 2003. He has over 25 years’ experience in Frt -~ BUES - ST MBS o ToRAEBAE

auditing, taxation, accounting and financial management. Mr. Wong is W b T F IR () A BR A B (B 5%
currently an Independent Non-executive Director of World Wide Touch 1282) Z W L EHATH S -
Technology (Holdings) Limited, a Hong Kong listed company (stock

code: 1282).

COMPANY SECRETARY A vl

Ms. Lam Cho Yuk Lily, aged 48, joined the Group since April 2002 and WREELE > BIF485 - A - FF AE HRIMA
was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company in March AL BN — BB = HERAT AN 7 2 8 )
2006. P o

Ms. Lam is a fellow member of the Chartered Association of Certified Mt AEESET ARG A G ETE B L FE
Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of SR A S e B o A B B O S T
Certified Public Accountants. She holds a B. Sc. Degree in Accounting AT P LA R A O B [ e A R B A
and Statistics from University of Southampton and a M. Sc. Degree in T -

Management Science from Imperial College of Science and Technology,
University of London.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT HREAR

Mr. Kwan Chi Kin Wallace, aged 41, joined the Group since December BEBRAE > B4R > i R+ AMA
2008 as the Group Financial Controller. Mr. Kwan holds a Bachelor of AL [ A SR B A AR S o BESEAR R s UK
Social Science Degree from The Chinese University of Hong Kong. He BTG Rl ELEL B o SRR S RO R B R
also holds a Master of Business Administration Degree from the SR - B A S A s R R T B B (A W] B

University of Manchester and a Master of Laws in Corporate & Financial — 4:filiE) o 0% & & uk gt i & 8 MR AF A
Law from The University of Hong Kong. He is an associate of the Hong RBasH A EFEE S - BN IBE R LA
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and also a fellow of the AR — RBP4 H T oA 35 s 4
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Kwan has over 19 TEI 194 K8 B o

years of experience in financial management and internal control with

listed companies and an international audit firm.
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GOVERNANCE FRAMEWORK

The Company is committed to building and maintaining high standards
of corporate governance practices. The Company adopted its own Code
on Corporate Governance Practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the
principles and code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”). A copy of the QPL Code is
posted on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Company has applied the
principles and complied with all the code provisions set out in the CG
Code except for the deviations explained in the relevant paragraphs below.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company (the “Board”)
assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising the Group’s affairs. Responsibilities of the
Board include but are not limited to the formulation of the Group’s
strategy and policies, setting of corporate and management targets and
key operational initiatives, monitoring and control of operational and
financial performance, and approval of major capital expenditures, major
investments, material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations of the
Group’s businesses to the executive management under the supervision of
the chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief Executive Officer”).
The division of responsibilities between the Board and the management is
set out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have also
been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs.
Details of these three committees are set out below.

The Company has established a policy enabling Directors to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate independent
professional advice to Directors to assist the relevant Director or Directors
to discharge his/their duties to the Company as and when requested or
necessary.
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BOARD COMPOSITION WA ALK
The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed from time WG AN - HUE AR S AR ST o DA E
to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced composition of skills and 55 [K] A £ [H 3£ 155 2 7 B2 11 24 700 55 3% fe M 4%

experience appropriate for the requirements of the businesses of the B o T PLAT o 5 B N FE AT I 2 B C b
Group, and that the balance between executive Directors and independent 4] > J& DL AE & 4 il 7 > DAUAR AR 2 =) fi o 22 )
non-executive Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for fi o DARCR BEE S A L g S B o

safeguarding the interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enable the Board to exercise independent judgment.

During the year under review and up to the date of this Annual Report, RN TREN -5 E e s Y = B I o R g AT TR )
the Board consists of two executive Directors, one of whom is the founder {77 » Hf— & AAREBBIPEA ~ EHe T
of the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer, and TTHAEE > LR A IEATHE S > 1SS B I
three non-executive Directors, all of whom are independent non-executive ~ #f7H F -

Directors.

Executive Directors Pufr

Li Tung Lok ( Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer) ZER G (EH G LI AT

Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ( Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing ) ST (45 B2 R A o e R ) A

Independent Non-executive Directors B AT R

Robert Charles Nicholson Bk

Sze Tsai To Robert B P

Wong Chun Bong Alex FIRF

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience in AR - RMEA I BN - EEt T
corporate management, strategic planning, and legal, accounting and B E M AT 2 M A o AT E S s
financial matters. Of the five existing Directors, two independent non- BT IR AT R S A B G R o BUTE S Y R
executive Directors are qualified accountants. The biographies of the JEEAARLEREE 13 R 14 o A BRI EAR 7
existing Directors are set out on pages 13 to 14 of this Annual Report. R AR o

The information is also available on the Company’s website.

Throughout the year under review, the Board has complied with Rules AR o] B4 TN > SE e — B ST B TR AIER
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules in having at least three 310K EE310Q)A AT 2D = 2B FERAT
independent non-executive directors with at least one independent non- HRZBE > R 20— 2\ PATEERA S
executive director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or T 2 B S T e T R B A RS SR G, -

accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received from each existing independent non-executive A</ ) B 14 4% BUAT B 57 I AT FE S0 AR I8 L T AR AU
Director an annual written confirmation of his independence pursuant to 453,135 5% 2508 57 B A 1F ) 2 AR BERERR 2 > WG AR

Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all existing independent P8 LR 85| BR A AR BT T IR
non-executive Directors to be independent on the basis of the TEHN BN -

independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there is no financial, business or VR R TRA e B 2 T M A AT T B S
family relationship among the members of the Board. EF R IGRAIR -

A A
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APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every director,
including those appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors (excluding
Director(s) holding office as executive chairman and/or managing director,
who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law, exempted from retirement by
rotation) shall retire from office at each annual general meeting of the
Company and shall be eligible for re-election. As the executive Chairman
of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In
order to comply with Code Provision A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed
to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At
the annual general meeting of the Company held on Sth October, 2009,
Mr. Li voluntarily retired from office and was re-elected as executive
Director. Mr. Li continues to act as the Chairman of the Board.

The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as its
managing director.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of not more
than three years, subject to retirement and re-election pursuant to the Bye-
laws of the Company.

BOARD MEETINGS
During the year under review, four Board meetings were held. The
attendance record of each member of the Board is set out below.

WPRAL - BE R R

RFEEAT I Z ST RIRSCR A 420 BUE A 5 (1
AR EREFENE) HEDE = FinEEE K -

WAIEA R F Z A FAA > RS OR A HALH
AT Je /B S RSB 2 R 1R SRR
T3 E SRR Rl (R ) R A A R 2 e
JEHH AR R EIRAL - AT & EAR B BT - R[] 4
SAERMERGRATER > R HRESE o &
BT R SCEE A 4210 - IR S 5e A TR i b
=4 [ BRI B AL — R o R R ILEAL
HIH BT 2 A0 A HRGA R E > RS 5E4 A
FEORAT > MM 8 S AT E S o 2 [ QR ST A MR AR
TEHFEN -

A T BRI e S A AR AR

FEPAT H

B AT HE S AR A = A AR A
N Z N R R R ES AT

ER S gcf

F AR - SEBAT IR e i - A
B 2 H R UG B T

Attendance/

Members of the Board Number of Meetings
HHENE MRk A
Executive Directors Ky e
Li Tung Lok ( Chairman of the Board and Chief 2 (i) 4 (7 2 3 I TR

Executive Officer) 4/4
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ( Senior Vice President of ST (41 B R A S e R il A7)

Sales and Marketing) 4/4
Independent Non-executive Directors LR = KR
Robert Charles Nicholson R 3/4
Sze Tsai To Robert 138 P 4/4
Wong Chun Bong Alex THRF 4/4
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER  F: 0% KAy Bl

Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of A ZEEE TR 2 SF R SCEB A 25T - 208 T
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not be  f7E %k FA (O IRE T &) - HAEHF— AN 13
performed by the same individual. £ -

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the ZE[A] 4 5e e AR R — L/ JLFE — H RO R R AT
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as ~ #EFH & & o IbAh > 20840 —FFN\FE+ AR
the Chief Executive Officer since December 2008. Being the founder of HATATECAA S, o fE A E 2 AN » 2= 40

the Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed understanding of the LSRR T S 2 R A I S A T R B
Company’s operations is highly regarded by the Company. Accordingly, o R > BAEZERIGIEE T E R & TR HITIE
vesting the roles of Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer in 483k A] 5 A\ 7] 2 2EH B4 S0 Ak o1 KB (E > W] Rp 42

Mr. Li adds significant value to the Company’s business growth while T AR FL R ER AR A 1 L ] O 2 POROR AR I AL AR o

enhancing the efficiency of decision-making process in response to the F A T A B KR SR YA R S S e e > iR A
changing environment. Given all major decisions are reserved to the WHG WA BB IFNTES s ARFRAES
Board and a majority of the Board members are independent non- & BN 7 B LR 2 T L AR RE 70 R ) B RET-

executive Directors, the Company considers that there is adequate balance i o
of power and authority in place between the Board and the management

of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE HBRERT

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000 pursuant to the then T B G BT HREE R LA
Code of Best Practice of the Listing Rules. F LR A SE R -

Throughout the year under review and up to the date of this Annual B R AR AW - FEEAgh =4
Report, the Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive  J7 JF ¥ATHE 2 L8 W Se i (FFZE B & L) - B
Directors, namely, Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert (being the Chairman of the B AE R F RIS A A o 5 B S A e T ARIR

Audit Committee), Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson and Mr. Wong Chun SeAE A ERE R > RN eE - BB S
Bong Alex. Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex are J7 1B R

qualified accountants with extensive experience in accounting, audit and

financial matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent with those TN T B 2 R [ B SR S R T — 3
set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Audit Committeeis  TI# A A /AT 4HuE > IRA] AN 7 2Z A ) FhE (T4
posted on the Company’s website and also available from the company AR ) R -

secretary of the Company (“Company Secretary”) on request.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include: W B oy FEAA LIRS

- assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an — 75 308 B A ST A T e T A 4R T AR R R
independent review and supervision of the Group’s financial il JEE B N R e 2 R gE o B E S e
reporting system, and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control JEATHIEAT
system,;

- reviewing the Group’s financial information; and - WAL 2 TR 5 K

- reviewing the appointment of external auditors to ensure - gt AN A BT 2 AT o FEOR A MR — B
continuing auditor independence. (R ST o

s
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During the year under review, three Audit Committee meetings were held.  JRFIRE4ERE A - BT ZIRFEL T E T & & - T
The attendance record of each member of the Audit Committee is set out & B & &M 82 H:i JRRCERANT

below.
Attendance/
Members of the Audit Committee Number of Meetings
EBRZHEHRE WKk H
Independent Non-executive Directors W JEPUATHE S
Sze Tsai To Robert ( Chairman of the Audit LB (FEZ AT
Committee) 3/3
Robert Charles Nicholson e 2/3
Wong Chun Bong Alex FIRFP 3/3

During the year under review, work performed by the Audit Committee P REAEEE A > R AT TEEE

included:

- reviewing and approving external auditor’s engagement letter in — R MM HER BB E - FFE WA =+
relation to the audit of the financial statements for the year ended H 1k 45 BE B RS i 3 4% B T A 22 AN A S il
30th April, 2010; ZHIK

- reviewing external auditor’s audit plan in relation to the audit of — M ANEAZ R R E - F4FEI A
the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2010; =T H AR RE S R SR A A 2 G

&

- reviewing and discussing with the external auditor significant - 2 S0 L B AN SR A B R F
audit, accounting and internal control issues arising from the — AR A = H IR AR 5 R E T
audit of the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, VEM A 2 BERER ~ G5 LN
2010; HLHEAT R

- reviewing the financial statements for the year ended 30th April, — FHBEE F-FENA=+THILEEZ
2010 and making recommendations to the Board for approval; ISR - Wk S b

- reviewing and approving external auditor’s engagement letter in — M EMEREESEE X —FFE+H =+
relation to the review of the interim financial statements for the six — H AR T A RS R AR B AR 2 S
months ended 31st October, 2010; HEAZ AT ZE I 1K)

- discussing with the external auditor accounting issues arising from  — BLANE A BT A P B =X R A
the review of the interim financial statements for the six months = —H kS E A R R E A
ended 31st October, 2010; TR

- reviewing the interim financial statements for the six months — FHEE T -FHE+TH=+—HIENE
ended 31st October, 2010 and making recommendations to the H o A e > oI d e o S e i
Board for approval;

- reviewing the scope of internal control review proposed by the — A [ SN A5 AR B R AT R 2 A 4
external firm of qualified accountants; and Mt a5 M

- reviewing the report on the review of the system of internal — T AR A 8] 2 oA R B 2 AR o

control of the Group.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%k
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006.
Since its establishment, the Remuneration Committee has consisted of
one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok, and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson (being
the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee), Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert
and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are consistent
with those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are posted on the Company’s website and also
available from the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and senior
management;

- determining and approving the specific remuneration packages of

all executive Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non-executive Directors.

During the year under review, no meeting of the Remuneration
Committee was held. Written resolution procedure was adopted to deal
with the business of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive Directors and

senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
the independent non-executive Directors.

Mz R
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 23rd January, 2006. Since
its establishment, the Nomination Committee has consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex
(being the Chairman of the Nomination Committee), Mr. Robert Charles
Nicholson and Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are consistent with
those set out in the CG Code. The terms of reference of the Nomination
Committee are posted on the Company’s website and also available from
the Company Secretary on request.

The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee are:

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the Board
on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors and
succession planning for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of
the Board and the Chief Executive Officer.

During the year under review, no meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held. Written resolution procedure was adopted to deal with the
business of the Remuneration Committee.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included reviewing the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors and assessing their
independence.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules for dealings in the securities of the Company by
Directors. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the
Company, that they have fully complied with the required standard set out
in the Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’
transactions throughout the year under review.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibility for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group at the end of the year under review and
of results of operation and cash flows of the Group for the year under
review.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year under
review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- prepared the consolidated financial statements on going concern
basis and are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu, regarding their reporting responsibility is set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 32 to 33 of this Annual Report.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was reappointed as the Company’s external
auditor at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 27th
September, 2010 until the conclusion of the next annual general meeting
of the Company. During the year under review, a remuneration of
approximately HK$1,200,000 was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu for the provision of audit services, and approximately
HK$449,000 was paid and payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for the
provision of non-audit related services (including review of interim report
and tax services) to the Group.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Directors should
at least annually conduct a review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal control of the Group.

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to establish and
maintain a sound and effective internal control system to ensure the
smooth running of operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and
shareholders interest as well as ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising internal
controls, the Group has regard to the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of internal
control is designed to manage, but not eliminate, the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute, assurance against the risk of material misstatement, fraud or
loss.

During the year under review, the Group engaged an external firm of
qualified accountants to initiate an independent review covering the
overall financial, operational, compliance, risk management and
monitoring control aspects for a substantial part of the Group’s
operations. A report from the external firm of qualified accountants was
addressed and presented to the Board, and reviewed by the Audit
Committee and the Board. The report did not reveal any significant
defects.

The aforesaid is an ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and
managing of significant business, financial, compliance and operational
risks specific to the Group. Relevant recommendations made by the Audit
Committee and the external qualified accountants who performed the
reviews at least annually would be implemented, if appropriate, as soon as
possible, by the Group to further enhance its internal control policies,
procedures and practices.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

B E R

The Directors present their annual report and the audited consolidated HEORHELEESRE - ——F A =THIE
financial statements for the year ended 30th April, 2011. TP 22 IR R A AR S AT R ER o
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FBER

The Company acts as an investment holding company. AN T B PEHEE N T o

The principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale of ~ FHFf} i 28 7] 2 52675 5 ik Ko 8 B8 45 =R I 5 | 47

integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment HE ~ TR B o AR R P G -

holding.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS E 3 Y Y3

The results of the Group for the year ended 30th April, 2011 are set outin  AEMEE ~F——4ENH =+ H IH4E B 2 2E40H
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 34. R E Z 4 A A IR ATRE -

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect of ~ FEH ABFHIRBHE —F——4ENA=+H ILFEE
the year ended 30th April, 2011 (2010: Nil). (R AR - 4 o

SHARE CAPITAL A
Details of movements during the year in the share capital of the Company A<\ &) 4F A B 7 22 58 Bl i 4 B 05 S 36 FfF 26 -
are set out in Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY A2 w) Z W) 43 IR fifk £

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to WZF——HMH =+H - AR AN IR T &
shareholders at 30th April, 2011. Al o

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the RIE A FE — LN Nk (BRTA) » AARZ
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for distribution. B ERIET L0 IR o SR - £ FIEW » A H]
However, the Company cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a A A B E IR SR A IR AR AU

distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as @) I AR (BUR IR B ) R B 2 B

they become due; or fig 5 5

(i)  the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the (i)  ATFVEE 2 ] s BE (RS R AR A i H
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share Bl DT KRR E IR =H 2
premium accounts. Ao

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Yook ~ B Bt i

During the year, the Group acquired property, plant and equipment atan ~ 4E A > A< 2 H 11 19,954,000 JC & B A R B

aggregate cost of HK$19,954,000. 3 AR R -

Details of this and other movements in the property, plant and equipment — ASSE[FWZE ~ HERS MR NME Al K HoAth 2 43
of the Group during the year are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated B RS A AR S B R M 5 14 -
financial statements.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%k
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BRI

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS FHEE P KA HE R

For the year ended 30th April, 2011, the percentages of the Group’s BMEZEF——FMNA = HIREE . FEEF Rt
turnover and purchases attributable to its major customers and suppliers JEP T AG A 4L [ 2 & 2ERA R IR 2 A LR
are as follows:

%
Turnover attributable to: JiTibi SR
Largest customer BREF 16
Five largest customers HRER 47
Purchases attributable to: ST A BR AR
Largest supplier BR AR 13
Five largest suppliers TR 51

At no time during the year did a director, an associate of a director or a RAFREDS ~ HEBE A T IlE R AN F#E S
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the directors of PN A AN 6] 8347 IR AS B 38 5% 3 ) TN AS4F A AT

the Company owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share 0] B ] MU 4T 608 A A 4 [ K % 0 sl A6 7 AT ] A
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or T o

suppliers.

DIRECTORS Y

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this AR JE R EAR A H 2 AN R EEUR -
report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AT HEE

Mr. Li Tung Lok ( Executive Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) A [a) B e (B 17 3 1T A )

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick ST

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS LR SRR R

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson REE A

Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert s e

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex FARFIRSEAE

Pursuant to bye-law 102A of the Bye-laws of the Company, Mr. Sze Tsai FIBAN T 2N T AN RS 102A16 > B FEEfT
To Robert and Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex, both being independent non- 55 5 38 (g 4o A= B TR IR 50 A Ui B B 4E K 6r 3R
executive Directors, will retire from office at the AGM and, being eligible, T > H & & H& 37 JFH = F 588 AT o

have offered themselves for re-election.

As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok is not, by WRIEE ZEEEN > R eEEAER ST E
virtue of Bermuda law, subject to retirement by rotation. However, in S BEERE SR o SR > Bsr B IGSFASE
order to comply with the Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, which A OB A 4206 (B sT I a4 E H 0 i D i =48

stipulates that every director should be subject to retirement by rotation W EIBE—R) > R gLEDHER2 V=41
at least once every three years, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed to voluntarily — JiB/F—vk > WA= E&EET o R - EENFETH

retire and be re-elected at least once every three years. At the annual T H BT 2 AN G ROE AR R e s 2[R 4h5EA
general meeting of the Company held on 5th October, 2009, Mr. Li Tung  J#EAT M 38T ST R - 2[R 480 R 84
Lok voluntarily retired from office and was re-elected as an executive {FEEH e W —5% -

Director. Mr. Li Tung Lok continues to act as the Chairman of the
Board.

A A
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EHE

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 30th April, 2011, the interests of the directors of the Company and
their associates in the share capital and underlying shares attached to
share options of the Company or any of its associated corporations as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”), or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) of
the issued share capital of the Company were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

R BBy Kot B JBe iy 2 HE

A TE——FHA =4 H o AN ARSI R
Ao (I8 5 R 3 B e il 1) 36 35200 M i 37 2 % T 44
BTG > A< R S S S 2 i BN LA A ]
S HCAT AR T 35 T 22 B 5 U SRR o A R B 073 2
s > BURIRE W& 205 T A R ] (T3 )
i 7 TR ([ TR D) Bra b8 m ST
8 5 58 O W RSy FU R R € A 2 ) 28 it 2 W4
LU

A2y il B B B B By 2 e Y

Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares of the Company

Personal
interests

Name of director

j & 312 N 4
Mr. Li Tung Lok g

~ Ordinary shares in issue Gy dinrile 273,794,282
M. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick it

~ Unlisted share options - JF E 3,060,000
Mr. Sze Tsai To Robert RS

~ Unlisted share options -3 LTI 510,000
M. Robert Charles Nicholson REmk

~ Unlisted share options — LTl 510,000
Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex FRIEE

~ Unlisted share options - 3k E TR b 510,000

Notes:

(a) The family interests of 3,000,000 shares represent the interest of the wife of
Mr. Li Tung Lok.

ARH AT MR B
Percentage
of the issued
Family Corporate share capital
interests interests Total of the Company
fiA A
[k {7173
ey Al it ZHRR
3,000,000 18,590,944 295,385,226 38.49%
(Notea) (Noteb)
(Hizta) (Hfztb)
- - 3,060,000 0.40%
- - 510,000 0.07%
- - 510,000 0.07%
- - 510,000 0.07%
(a) K I HER 23,000,000 B3 )5 4= ] 46 S e 2 F 7
Z T o
(b) Zx[n) 44 e 2 WA 2 Solar Forward Company

(b) Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, which
owns 18,590,944 shares of the Company.

Save as disclosed herein and for shares in subsidiaries held by the directors
in trust for their immediate holding companies, at 30th April, 2011, none
of the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their associates,
had any interest or short position in any securities or derivatives of the
Company or any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO.

Limited 54 422 7 18,590,944 B i 3 -

WRASSC T $ i 5 L 3 o LUR RE 07 AU e )
FrAT 8 2wl Z et bh > i =& —— 4 H =+
Ao AARIES - FEATEANA SIS 2 BHR AL
MEAEBE A A 2> 7] BCHAT AR I B O 8 SR8 55 I
BRG] Z AT 88 25 s AT A TR 2 AT Ml 23 sk
£ o
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BRI

SHARE OPTIONS i B
Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in Note 33 A ) W IO RE T B 1 O 455 & A R R B 5133 o
to the consolidated financial statements.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share options | 3% 75 2 35 MR B Fr i A w1) i IR HER RN 2
granted to the directors and employees during the year: s

Outstanding Qutstanding
at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Date of grant 2010 Granted Exercised Forfeited 211 Exercise Period

R-F-% R=F—4
ER—H S WA= HH
sham WAL 4 e L WAL AT

Category I: Directors

Fa

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick 11th May, 2007 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000 18th May, 2007 10th May, 2012

TR “RELERAL-H “ERUFRATARE - E-CHAA TR
[1th May, 2007 600,000 - - - 600,000 18th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RELELAT-H CEENFLATAHESE-CERATH
3rd December, 2009 840,000 - - - 840000 10th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“EENETZAZR CEENEF A RECE-MEFCAZA
3rd December, 2009 420,000 - - - 420000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“FENETCAZR “F-FFCAZHECF-NETCAZA

M., Sze Tsai To Robert [1th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 10th May, 2012

PREEE “RELERA A CERLFRAVIAEZE-CE AT A
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100000 14th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
ZEFLERA R “EF)\FAATNEE-F-"FHATH
3rd December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 8th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
ZERNELCAZR SRRV AARECE A
3rd December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70,000 3rd December, 2010~ 2nd December, 2014
“EENETZA=H R ASHE SR A A

Mr. Robert Charles Nicholson ~ 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 14th May, 2007 10th May, 2012

RrEgE “RELERAL-H “ERAFRATNAE - E-CHAA TR
[1th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 14th May, 2008 10th May, 2012
“EELERA A “EENFRATEAE - Z-ZF AT
3rd December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 10th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“RENMETTAZH CRENFTCATHECE I A
3rd December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“FENEFAZH CE-EFACHE SR A

Mr. Wong Chun Bong Alex ~ 11th May, 2007 200,000 - - - 200,000 18th May, 2007 10th May, 2012

TRARE “RELERA A “REAFIATARE - FIATH
11th May, 2007 100,000 - - - 100,000 18th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“RRLETA-N ZEENERATAREZE-ZERATH
3rd December, 2009 140,000 - - - 140,000 7th December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“ERNELCAZR SRRV AEHE SR A
3rd December, 2009 70,000 - - - 70,000 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“EENETZA=H CE-FEFCASHECEE A

Total directors
EER 4,590,000 - - - 4,590,000

A
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=R

OQutstanding Qutstanding
at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Date of grant 2010 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2011 Exercise Period
e ARk
HH-H LAy 1] WA=FH
Sihnm WiAATHE uih il otk wAGH  Arh
Category 2:
= f
Eligible employees 11th May, 2007 9,000,000 - - (50,000) 8950,000  14th May, 2007~ 10th May, 2012
HEHER “RELELAT-R CREURERATNAE R R AT
11th May, 2007 4,500,000 - - (25,000) 4475000 14th May, 2008 - 10th May, 2012
“ERLERAT-H “ERVERATIAECE-CERATA
3rd December, 2009 11,530,500 - - (1,345,000) 10,185,500 3rd December, 2009 - 2nd December, 2014
“FENELCAZN ) o it S 12 e
3rd December, 2009 5,775,050 - - (672,500) 5,102,750 3rd December, 2010 - 2nd December, 2014
“RENETZAZR “F-FFACHECE-E A
Total employees
(R e 30805750 - S (2092500) 28,713,250
35,395,750 - - (2,092,500) 33,303,250
No options were exercised during the year. AP DA MR S PR REAEA T

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR i 0B B it 5 2 S 9

DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections headed W[ 25 SR A Ty B AR B Ay 2 i 2 | R [ B PR REE | T
“Directors’ Interests in Shares and Underlying Shares” and “Share i T 2 R B RE T B A1 > A28 W) il AT o] B 2 )
Options”, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its AAE RARART IR (3 S 2 BUE (] 22 8F » (A AR #
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the AL FE AR W) S AT Ao HoA vk A 2 B s E

Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or M - MAEF - FEGFHAL - %2 B
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of 185 LA 2 F LR A AE N IR JEHEA 54 T (AT A ] 52
the directors or chief executives, nor their spouses or children under the BEAS N F) 5B 5 2 HER o

age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or

had exercised any such right during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF HYR RS2 P4

SIGNIFICANCE
No contract of significance, to which the Company or any of its T H B AR ATAT RE R - AR ) ml AT AT o g 2 )
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the Company had a WA RT S AR ) B i b B R ak R B A 5 R

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at theend of the ~— ZiZ FEHEAH) o
year or at any time during the year.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4#k
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EHE

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS BHAEE

No contract of significance concerning the management and AR RN ECAESE > S Mg A 28 )l AT o] B A Rl 2
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the AR EAT (] B KA S 2 A B AT B T AR T
Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the year or ZHEREGH -

subsisted at the end of the year.

No director was a party to a service contract with the Company or any of = 2 Hif 8 Bl A</ ] a3 HAT-fa B 8 2\ R 45T 1R A |l
its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the employing company TE— AR A ST AT A B IR ERRAN) R4k 2
within one year without the payment of compensation (other than R EH) o

statutory compensation).

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS TR

At 30th April, 2011, other than the interests disclosed above in respect of A E—-—FNNH=Z+H > B CIEAR— %
a director, the Company has not been notified of any other interest W ZRER AL > AN TG AFN A AT E A A B
representing 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company and HAN A B BT IRARS%EL LA | > 050 B R 45 2
recorded in the register of substantial shareholders maintained under 75 BIABARBIEE 3360 B 2 F RO A MR -
Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED  J#§¥ ~ 8 sl ml bli & %

SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries RN AR A SCHAT T B s W BRI - ek
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities. W [ A 2 AT b i i 2 o

EMOLUMENT POLICY P 4 80 3R

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the ANAE EE B 2 P4 R B B e iR R 2 2 T
Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit, qualifications and A~ B BESTHIET o

competence.

The emoluments of the directors and senior management of the Company 7/ &) # 2 M @ A0 #1824 th 3% B & 48
are decided by the Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board, % &1 25 fA A2\ ) 2 A B B %5 Sk 2 ~ A7 2L 50 3%
having regard to their individual duties and responsibilities with the HE R E IRETT DU I P Il 3 g g -

Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and prevailing

market conditions.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to AN E B PR AN BE IR T DASEEYEE T A B
directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is set out in Note B %t 2 RE N SR A I R M EE33

33 to the consolidated financial statements.

APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT NON- B IEPAT R 2 RAT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive Ay OB A ST JE AT I FARYE B R R EE
directors, an annual confirmation of the independence pursuant to Rule 3 131G T AT B O S 0 ST T 2 A B AR T R -
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent AN E) R B BT A IE AT E S B By o
non-executive directors are independent.

o3t
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EHE

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS 1 5 ik L
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s AN T 20N FAN R B S A I S I E R
Bye-laws or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the FE » BB AR R ZE i H 9] ) B4 R AR 8% 65 0T i

Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders. {7 °

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT S5 SR FE B

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company HRIEAN FIERS 2 A BRER ABHE d Gr i > i
and within the knowledge of the Board, the percentage of the Company’s £ ~“F——4E A =+ H IF4FEF > AR AN L4
shares which are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s A%\ & &4 B i A 2\ 7 2 8647 B A0 802 5% ©

total number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30th April, 2011.

AUDITOR 1234

A resolution will be submitted to the Annual General Meeting of the AN A RO AE R G i ER 52 A A T A Ay » B
Company to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of — F B 77 & 51 HlifT 5 A8 5] 42 Bl 2 Pk 5 -

the Company.

On behalf of the Board RE#HEFE

Li Tung Lok Ed 3

Chairman 2= ) 4t

28th July, 2011 —FE——FEH 1+ /\H
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

T S A% S e

Deloitte.
=2

TO THE MEMBERS OF QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability )

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of QPL
International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 98, which
comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 30th April,
2011, consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

#HQPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(B FT A ik s 2 R 2 A)
B Jbe 3

AITEFHH N HE 3498 EH IQPL International
Holdings Limited ([ 552w 1) K FF &2 7 (Sifk
[RAEME ) B 556 MR > ISR R a5 —
T4 A = H W45 E MBI DU R R 2 5%
H IR RN ARG AR A RS - A ms IR &
SEABERER > DL BRSO HA 5
MR L -

A O B W AUR I W AT

B R HH A TR A et A G A 0 A i
S5 S 4 1) % 4 T e s 2 ) A 091 45 8 R i
B RV SR ER & MBS R - RE R
A BAR G PSR P AL B A A B S - DA 5 B
BEHR AR A AE A Y B it 1 8 R R
7& o

B il vy 55 4

AT FAE R AARIEAAT I T B2 S 5 B B R
PR o AT RIZI A 5N FERIOBME
T 1) RS R I RO, BRI Z AN AAT RS E A
APEHA A o ARATHAAIR G HH R > B
AT A LB TESRE R - ATEREFE S
i AL (9 A U A A YR AT A, © %SRRI
RAATEPETEHE > AWHIE RPITHER > LG
T AE L 55 A U5 R S 70 AN A7 AT A A A S kB

o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B8 S A% T R

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 30th April, 2011, and of the
Group’s loss and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28th July, 2011

LW BT RE P LA IRCR B Ak & B SRR P i
TR AR ORI TR IE © T8 E O FR P BRI AL
SECRITER) B - B A o S ST B R T B B
PSR AR AT BB R R ) JEBR o TE RT A % 55
BRI > A SCHTI% i B2 ) A A BRI 2 e B
SR RS R AT B R R ) > DLsGEHRRE R L T
JRES T T ) R AR+ ELSIE 3B 2 R Y A B o )
ARERRE R - FRO A EESRRAN S
A F R A A B A A e sttt i & B -
LAt AR & BB R A R 5 kT

AATHAME > AT Fr AT ) 3 A% i 5 70 A2 1 i
FARFTH AL AR LR -

537

AATRBHRy - ZAFERE MBS IR TR B i i
W QRS Fo b B R ER = —— 4RI =
+ BB BSIR DL A 5% B4R RE Al R A0 B 40
Ol E R A A m R B SRR U 2 S AR

PEB) o B BT Frit Wiy
B
il

—F—-—FtH 1+ /N\H

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4%k



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

e E MW A#RSE

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % & ——4

EPOH =+ H L4

Notes

liogas

2011
—t

HK$°000
T#x
353,998

14,711
(4,200)

4,593
(199,880)
(74,134)

(10,962)

(2,342)
(93,123)

(7806)

(12,125)
(1,028)

Turnover e 7
Other income H At A 9
Exchange loss, net iFE 58 5 HE VR AR
Changes in inventories of finished goods BB B B 2 A7 B 5 )
and work in progress
Raw materials and consumables used 15 R SR A B T FE
Staff costs i BiA
Depreciation of property, plant and W~ W G 2 AT
equipment 14
Losses arising from changes in fair value of 74 4l T B/ PE s 8 E A4
derivative financial instruments Z R
Impairment losses on balances with a d— XTI 2 ) 4 Bk 2 WU (EL
former subsidiary i 17
Other expenses HAhBA 32
Interest on bank and other loans wholly ZEA LA TN A B 2 SRAT I
repayable within five years HAt &R FLE
Share of loss of an associate SrAHE A F R
(Loss) profit before taxation BB AT (518 i A
Taxation FiJE 10
(Loss) profit for the year AAEE (1R 16 A1 11
Other comprehensive income (expenses):  FHABA A (BI%) -
Exchange differences arising on PRE A 2 T S 25 %0

translation
(Loss) gain on fair value changes of
available-for-sale investment

AP BUE AP A B
2 () Weds

(13,153)

2

(1,794)

Total comprehensive (expenses) income for

the year

ARAE B AT (B 52) WA AR

(14,945)

(Loss) earnings per share
Basic and diluted

M (R0 25241
A L

2010

e

HK$°000
TH#TT

325,287
22,122
(1,726)

1,864
(153,361)
(74,007)
9.412)

(1.213)

(77,287)

(753)
(6.433)

25,081
(1,530)

5.




(:()PJS()LIEMXTE[) STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
o o A B AR DL AR

At 30th April, 2011 j —ZF——4F0 H =

- +H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS FhG By ¥
Property, plant and equipment ~ #J2& ~ #2%% K 3%t 14
Interest in an associate R /NIl 15
Investment in convertible AR ST A — £

preferred shares — loan HER

portion 16
Derivative financial instruments £ 4 il T2 16
Other receivable HoAh RE W IE 17
Advance payment for property, EJE%% Heas Rkt 2

plant and equipment FEATEK
CURRENT ASSETS TRE YA
Inventories E5cy 18
Trade and other receivables 2 5 T HAth ME e 19
Trade receivable due from an JEW S AT 2 B 5

associate A
Deposits and prepayments e R R AL IR
Available-for-sale investments ~ AJ fitSHE & 20
Bank balances and cash SATHEBR R 21
CURRENT LIABILITIES LB £ 45
Trade and other payables B 5 N A EAT 3R IE 22
Trust receipt loans and bill 5 R R B A

payables ik 23
Deposits and accrued expenses %4 M fEF 2 A
Taxation payable JREAIBITE
Borrowings (E§5 24
Obligations under finance leases il & FHLAT RIS 25
NET CURRENT ASSETS VLY A A

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4§

2011

e
HK$’000

T#x

60,066

61,898

46,121
65,722

4,339

2,991
8,952

128,125

44,036

13,358
22,341
741
18,325
1,375

100,176
27,949

89,847

2010

e

HK$’000
TH#0
(Restated)
(%)

1st May, 2009
LN
fhH—H
HKS$’000
T
(Restated)
(E31)

51,072 52,973
- 1,211

- 4,706
51,072 58,890
32,688 26,569
76,129 34,008
- 13,423

9,604 5,951
4,785 4,272
18,520 12,858
141,726 97,081
34,996 12,976
2,772 2,949
35,008 34,882
738 79
14,652 27,897
308 -
88,474 78,783
53,252 18,298
104,324 77,188




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
f o BB IR DL R

At 30th April, 2011 jA —F——4EPIH =+H

2011 2010 Ist May, 2009

e

e HEA—H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$°000

T THIT FHI0
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31) (H51))

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEA B fiti i

Share capital A 26 61,390 61,390 61,388
Share premium and reserves APy T 15 R At 24,965 39,160 11,918
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO A2 s #if A
OWNERS OF THE Al A
COMPANY 86,355 100,550 73,306
NON-CURRENT T ) £1 4
LIABILITIES
Accrued rental expenses MEFTFH 4 3,555 3,882
Obligations under finance leases il & FH )& I 25 219 -
Deferred taxation IEIERITE 27 1 - -
3,492 3,774 3,882
89,847 104,324 77,188
The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 98 were approved R34 F IR H X S A MR E RGN —
and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 28th July, 2011 and —4EtE A T N AHUE IR RS > S R
are signed on its behalf by: REFHEHKE
Li Tung Lok Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
% B
Director Director
HH HH




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Lo A S T

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #%& ~F——4E H =+ H [R4E

Capital  Investment Share
Share Share  Contributed  redemption  revaluation options  Translation Accumulated
capital premium surplus reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Total
YRR YRR R
Bk RbnEm  HAEE it fatf Wl WS RbER it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000
THT THL THT THT THT THT T THT THL

(Note)
(Hit)
At 1st May, 2009 REEFNERA—H 61,388 147,801 40475 12310 1,538 2,643 80 (192,929) 73,3060
Exchange differences arising on #u/8 ek 2 [E i 248
translation - - - - - - 161 - 161
Gain on fair value changes of A fLEH &R AT
available-for-sale investment %8 2 % - - - - 513 - - - 513
Profit for the year AR A - - - - - - - 23551 23,51
Total comprehensive income 44§ 2T A 44
for the year - - - - 513 - 161 23551 24205
Recognition of equity-settled ~ FERRIRALE RN A
share-based payment HpE2 3 - - - - - 3,010 - - 3010
Issue of ordinary shares under  H%1% B BBt #1
employee share option plan %17 M 2 11 - - - 4 - - 9
Transfer to accumulated losses &% B3 # - - - - - (394) - 3% -
At 30th April, 2010 RoF—RE
WA=1H 61,390 147812 40475 12310 2,051 5,255 A4l (168,984) 100,550

Exchange differences arising 4 2 S £ 4

on translation - - - - - - 2 - 2
Loss on fair value changes of A (L8 4G AT

available-for-sale investment 48 7 54 - - - - (1,794) - - - (1,794)
Loss for the year KEEER - - - - - - - 13,153) (13,15
Total comprehensive income ~ AAEE 2 A

(expenses) for the year (B0 4 - - - - (1,794) - 2 (13,153)  (14.945)
Recognition of equity-settled  FEZRIRALE I A

share-based payment SR - - - - - 750 - - 750
Transfer to accumulated losses - 5% 23tE 18 - - - - - (288) - 28 -
At30th April, 2011 REF——F

[WA=+H 61,390 147812 40475 12,310 251 517 2143 (181,8349) 86,355

Note:  Contributed surplus represents the excess of the net assets of subsidiaries Bt - B RS T IO B A D I (R A
acquired over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued as AR A BT A TR TR (B 2 25 3 o
consideration.

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4§




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——40 A =+ H L4

2011 2010
R4 S 22
HK$’000 HK$’000
T-H#IL AR
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BB
(Loss) profit before taxation FRBLAT (518 16 A (12,125) 25,081
Adjustments for: A
Interest income FLEMA (6) 19)
Interest on bank and other loans wholly JERN HAR N 2 BEIE 2 SRIT X
repayable within five years HoAh &3k FLE 786 753
Share of loss of an associate IR E A F R = 6,433
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 135 ~ H&o% K ki 2 485 10,962 9,412
Impairment losses on balances with a former B — ST A F 4 k2
subsidiary WERER 2,342 -
Share-based payment expense DURR Ay 77 SRR 2 AT 3k B 52 750 3,010
Write down of inventories 17 & i 458 149
Allowance for (reversal) of bad and SRR (B ml)
doubtful debts (614)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and WY - HES SR
equipment Z Wt (14)
Losses arising from changes in fair value of AT AR T BN T E)
derivative financial instruments FEA 2 R 1,213
Imputed interest income on non-current JE B o B H A BRI 2
interest-free other receivable HEFALEA (1,251)
Interest income for convertible preferred shares A R S 2 AL U A (6,121)
Operating cash inflows before movements in KT8 B B A
working capital BamA 2,445 38,032
Increase in inventories beace bl (13,891) (6,268)
Decrease (increase) in trade and other receivables & 5 M HAl BEGERIE I D (B 00) 9,273 (35,553)
Decrease in trade receivable due from an associate JEUI /N 7 2 B 5 ZOE = 13,423
Decrease (increase) in deposits and prepayments 54 & FAT 5 IE D (340) 3,765 (3,653)
Increase in trade and other payables B 5y A AT R TE R 7,358 21,638
Increase (decrease) in bill payables AT ZLBE RN (37D 1,133 (1,402)
Decrease in deposits and accrued expenses e MRS & D (12,995) (352)
Cash (used in) generated from operations & T Fe) ra Bl (2,912) 25,865
Income tax paid EAT B (1,024) (871)
Interest paid CATRLE (783) (755)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM BB OIke) i3
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BAEH (4,719) 24,239




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
maBlEimER

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——4 A =+ H L4

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest received
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Advance payment for property, plant and
equipment
Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

BV
A3 ALE
HE'SLSE ~ ted Lot

WIS ~ M Bt < AT K

HEYZE - Hear KB
P 3 3KIH

2011 2010
e

e
HKS$’000 HK$°000
T TG

6 19
(17,805) (6,505)

838

20

(16,941) (6.472)

- 9
5,837 -
(2,164) (13,242)
(1,034) ©7
9,453 1,225

12,092 (12,105)

(9,568)

18,520

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING BOE B IREBL A
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES TR Y

Issue of shares BATIRAY

New bank loans raised A ERAT B

Repayment of borrowings G B

Repayment of obligation of finance leases B BT A R

Net increase in trust receipt loans {5 R B e

NET CASH FROM (USED IN) TR W P A4 (T HE)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BAEE

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN BERSERBAEEH (WA)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B mg

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT AR B4 B %
BEGINNING OF YEAR B4&mEH

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT AR B KR FMBLEH
END OF YEAR

Representing bank balances and cash TRERIT 4G R M B4

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4§
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E#E

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate
information section of the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”) that is different from the functional
currency of the Company which is United States dollars (“USD”)
as the directors of the Company control and monitor the
performance and financial position of the Company by using
HKS.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) are the manufacture and sale of integrated
circuit leadframes, heatsinks and stiffeners and investment
holding.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS")

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and
revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).

HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5
as part of Improvements to
HKFRSs issued in 2008
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2009
HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate

Financial Statements
HKAS 32 (Amendments) Classification of Rights Issues

HKAS 39 (Amendments) Eligible Hedged Items

HKFRS 2 (Amendments) Group Cash-settled Share-based
Payment Transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised) Business Combinations

HKIFRIC) —Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets

to Owners

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 Classification by the Borrower of
(“HK Int 57) a Term Loan that Contains a

Repayment on Demand Clause

— R

5 A T RO R AR G R

&Aj CHL 0 5 2 5 9 AT R
7 (TSR 1) i = 2 70 31 0 30 8 I

B AT 2 WA SR

1% -

H A A 2 ) o S LA T ) e BE AR AR A
LR B BIRBL A B R R T LA

([T ]) B4 BAXF RN ET
(F%%ﬁJ)KIEJ °

AT S BB HEBLA R o AN ) R M
N (SRR AL ) 2 F2 W By WG
L 0 B R B T | AR AE ~ ORGSR R AR
AR AR

R VR i B 8 48w 7 v Ykt o
S (78 08 S 0 i s e 1 )

AASERE  ALEC R T 5 A g ht
Eﬂ?/zk@ (A G ) ARG 28T
RRAEATHE S B o

Frws BHCE YRR s R o v A
(EFTA) SHEZ BRI A > fE
By B E )\ AEE
A 2 75 s B 5 s
%wzwﬁ %
FWHRCEER R FRIUEEM 2
(EFTA) s I i e 1)
Z Mo
FEHERISE2T ARG MO AR
SE(KAEHT)
T ERHERSE32 B

EUERTA)

g ELZE39  SEREMIEA
EUERTA)

T B AR SR DB A DU
258 (ERTA) (GENE S

TN AP
SH35% (RAERT)
A ( @IF%‘W‘%?&% ] A 23 IR JF Bl

s =S R HE
n£*§%177ﬁ
TR SUE ([ A\ 6 & Al By
RSt ) 2EOR MH R R A
TE SRR 73K

L A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 e P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Except as described below, the application of the new and revised
Standards and Interpretations in the current year has had no
material effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements or disclosures set out in these consolidated
financial statements.

HK INT 5 PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS — CLASSIFICATION BY THE
BORROWER OF A TERM LOAN THAT CONTAINS A
REPAYMENT ON DEMAND CLAUSE

HK Int 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause clarifies that term loans that include a clause that
gives the lender the unconditional right to call the loans at any
time (“repayment on demand clause”) should be classified by the
borrower as current liabilities. The Group has applied HK Int 5
for the first time in the current year. HK Int 5 requires
retrospective application.

In order to comply with the requirements set out in HK Int 5, the
Group has changed its accounting policy on classification of term
loans with a repayment on demand clause. In the past, the
classification of such term loans were determined based on the
agreed scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements.
Under HK Int 5, term loans with a repayment on demand clause
are classified as current liabilities.

As a result, bank loans that contain a repayment on demand
clause with the aggregate carrying amounts of HK$2,116,000 and
HK$4,113,000 have been reclassified from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities as at 30th April, 2010 and 1st May, 2009
respectively. As at 30th April, 2011, obligations under finance
leases (that are repayable more than one year after the end of the
reporting period but contains a repayment on demand clause)
with the aggregate carrying amount of HK$245,000 have been
classified as current liabilities. The application of HK Int 5 has
had no impact on the reported profit or loss, or (loss) earnings per
share for the current and prior years.

B FE B ) B 488 06 i 7 o A 05 4 o
S (17 s 1 B i Y 0 1) )

BRSO A 5 A AR AR BE PR AR BT AT M 8
T T e JU) % PSR A T B S R v T
B AR B A P S O S 4 3 4 R

=4
2 X

TR SR B A I — fig ok
A B3 5 T Bl Iy ZER AR Bk 1 3 H) £
Ky R

s i B SR B R A 119 5 H — 1 s N 2
B 1 ] B 1 R B2 I sk 7 ki 7
V6 T A N TSI A T IR S A
HHE P o RS2SR 2 R A A (1T ol I 2SR AR
EER ) E RO AR B AR - A
S5 [ LA A AR B OO T A s e RS 5 0 o
TR SR AUBWIE ) -

AT A BRI SUEIT R BUE » ALE
O 52 51 A T B IR R A 22 sk 2
BN G R EUR - R A BE R
9 50 ST AR R TR B ik 19 R 2
HKHMIEE - MEF RS S BA
W B SR 2 A R B I B AR T 20 IR 0 T
AL -

UL > AT AT B e R AR R B IR T A
{5 %52,116,000 3 JC K 4,113,000 % 7T 1) #1147
FHE IR = F—FFEMA =+H Rk
EENERHA—HHEFRD & EEHSE
BB E - N F—-—FMWA=1H >
MR 18 48 1 5 245,0007 70 2 B AH A7 38 (8
R AARE 2 — AR ER > HEA TR
R BRI R T B R B AR - A
Fr it i R AR SR e i SO 1R 47 T 2
A o A A (48D 28 R A LR 2 o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Foi o B 255 A Fi

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2. MEJHWEY K ST 7 v B W o
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING ) ([ 8 S 5 3 i R J ) ()
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

The effects of the above changes in accounting policies on the bl R A A B R —E LA
financial positions of the Group as at Ist May, 2009 and 30th TH—H & -F-FENWH=+HZ HE
April, 2010 are as follows: IV 7% 3/(1
Asat Asat
1st May, Asat  30th April, Asat
2009 1st May, 2010 30th April,
(Originally 2009 (Originally 2010
Stated)  Adjustments (Restated) Stated)  Adjustments (Restated)
1 : I S
ZZENE “E-%E “E-%E
fA—H MA=1H MA=+H
(1) e (E5)) (J5510) (E71)
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000
T T T T T
Borrowings - current fEE—IiE) 23,784 4113 27,897 12,536 2,116 14,652
Borrowings - non-current fE&—FiH 4113 113 - 2,116 @116) -
Total effects on net liabilites HARFR VEER 21897 - 27897 14,632 - 14,652
Such term loans and obligations under finance leases that contain 1M A B A T I I SR R K Y A B K
a repayment on demand clause are presented in the earliest time T AR A 7R A T # B BT S IR
band in the maturity analysis (see Note 6 for detail). o [#] F 2i (FE LM EE6) -
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised A 45 5] S 484 FLRE A A1 B AR A AH G SRR
Standards, Amendments or Interpretations that have been issued BT B AAERTHER ~ BT A R

but are not yet effective.




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

B FE B ) B 488 06 i 7 o A 05 4 o
S (17 s 1 B i Y 0 1) )

HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 ! il B i o e ) e aene ey oY i
S HES) AR
Q) 7 e
HKAS | (Amendments) Presentation of Items of Other e e 158 Hofb 2T 1E B
Comprehensive Income 2 S HES) Z 2]
HKAS 12 (Amendments) Deferred Tax: Recovery of Tl etk s 1295 IRAERIIE + iR AH
Underlying Assets 3 (EFTA) Zh-{eR
HKAS 19 (Revised 2011) Employee Benefits 4 ﬂa"‘i% FHEHISE 1958 18 2 AR A
ZER AR
HKAS 24 (Revised 2009) Related Party Disclosures 3 %“(% Y R 55 2458 B2 iR
(ZRFJERERT)
HKAS 27 (Revised 2011) Separate Financial Statements * Tl etk g7 B AT R
(ZF— 4R
HKAS 28 (Revised 2011) Investments in Associates and Joint T ET e 452858 RS AT RAE
Ventures* (ZF—— R Gk
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures — Transfers of Financial T REERETR RS E
Assets® S HES) B
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments * IS ERIOE SR TR
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements* FHMBREERE 109 G5 UHRE
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements* T B JLE e
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in MBI ERIE 129 HERHER
Other Entities* A
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement* TSRS35 A TER &
HK(IFRIC) - Int 14 Prepayments of 2 Minimum il (AR RE T EZ RIEEEREZHE
(Amendments) Funding Requirement Ber) — R 1455 A 3IES

HK(IFRIC) - Int 19

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments 7

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010

and Ist January, 2011, as appropriate

AP REHA R AR 2K
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2012 2 B E LA —HSR BRI
BERA AR
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 3 TR — T AE— H— BB Z & B IR 2 AR
2012 JEE 1) A3
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 4 W _FE—=ZF—H— B &M GZF
2013 JEE 1) A3
s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January, 5 W _FE——F—H— BB GZF
2011 JEE 1) A3
6 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2011 6 W _FE——FLH—HBSRZ RG22 F
FEHA AR
7 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st July, 2010 7 W oFE-FEFELH—HSRZ RG22 F

SCHES)

%‘% Fﬁﬁfn%i&&ﬁ% DABEAR T HAE8 4
Br) — s 199k AR

t R oF AL —H R E——F—
H— B (8 % B ) 8Lz & B iR 2

JE AR 2%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 e Pk

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E#E

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
(as revised in November 2010) adds requirements for financial
liabilities and for derecognition.

Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are within
the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement are subsequently measured at either amortised cost
or fair value. Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair values at the end of
subsequent accounting periods.

In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change relates to
financial liabilities that are designated as at fair value through
profit or loss. Specifically, under HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
amount of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is
attributable to changes in the credit risk of that liability is
presented in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair value attributable to a
financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of
the change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss was presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st
January, 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that application of HKFRS 9 that will be
adopted in the Group’s consolidated financial statements for
financial year ending 30th April, 2014 will impact the classification
and measurement of the Group’s available-for-sale investments,
but is not expected to impact the Group’s other financial assets
and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of
the other new and revised HKFRSs will have no material impact
on the results and the financial position of the Group.

JEE JE BT ) B 488 06 i 7 o S04 5 o
S (1A s Y B i Y N 1) )

T B RS sk 2 A LA (%
TIVAEA— A M) 5 LA 5l 7 2 0
Bt 2 HRE o A s I it e IR 9 5%
M TR —F—FE+— ARERT) R
T e <l B AR S R AL R BLE -

MR B O SR Ok 2 BUE - 4
T a et R399k 2 TR - R KAt
HFE LN Z A TR E > HR
TR A B PR RT & - FRRIE - B
19 22 CHR 5 2 B 48 T B 2 SE A A T 4+
AZEBRE s Ra BlE i85 s
AERREEAS B HHERE > —
FBTA AR w10 A oI A B AR R R
A HA B 8 R A BB R AR & st
HAE SRR (R -

BRI B EEOREEE) B R R R
TR AR 2 A6 o R - R
7 B S i MR RN SE O 5% BN E R AT
Ert ARG 2 EMARNE > FZahA
fRUf B Jml a5 B DA B Al B A P (ELA 5
M efH > g b2 A R 25 BRE
1E ARG WA P 251 2 8 15 5 B 5
[P S-SR DN A g ] U
SMARFERRNAFHEHHELS
HHERBUR RS o U RIEFEegstE
HIZE39%% - 8 AP EFF A H S 2 &l
A2 A T ESH 2 HERER G T 25 -

AU B RS OB —F — =4 — H
— H B AR B iR 2 AR B A 2 - 3l R R
R -

TR A R E ISR OB 1
AR E —F - AEN A =+ H IR
R GRMBEHERPEN . BN E
SRR B R] R BH AR BB 2 0 R R
SO METE AN & A 0 I EL At 5
V&AL Z

Aoy AR M HAGORT T R AR B T
o U i o A RO i A B I 2 SR AR S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao T 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements included applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, that
are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value
of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including special purpose
entities) controlled by the Company or its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved where the Company has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are included in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective
date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with
those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are
eliminated on consolidation.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a joint
venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

EEErHEoR

e B R R ORI 7 i  whA & i
s 2 7 W BB e i e IR R - US> AR
WA R R WA B IS 2 5 AT IR A w]
b TR B e il o R R L 2 T 4

&= .

B B R T R SR AR R A R M
AT T E R SO EOR B 4 8 F
(R RIBRAL o J88 SR — i L 40 I
RAEZ A S -

FEEGFHEORE T3 -

AR H Z Ak

oA B R R LA AN ) By AR ]
T g 2 ) 2 1 ) B B (ELE R Ok B A BB
Z B ER R o AL A HE T SR
P 5 BB I EOR T AR T B AR A A
fi > BPEUSRZ E A 2 P

AF TR BT WSO 5 R DR 2 W) 2 SR > T
AT A i SR A = A Uk (R
PAEVLINE ) T A SR & BT A R

WA T2 AR I A 7 2 J B R
AR RE > (U EOR SEAS A A
R 2 AT R A R B

A EE AR RIS ~ &k A KRH
SCY KRG IR F R A o

L F:gagil E

L NEIVE S BN N Z SR
B A AR IR A A FI AR 2 L o
W82 MG ECE N R 2 B Mg
PHEZMETy > T I e ) B[R] 42 A B EC
WM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E#E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in these consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. Under the equity method, investments in associates
are initially recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associates. When the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which includes any
long-term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of that
associate.

Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities of an associate recognised at the date of acquisition is
recognised as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment.

Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities over the cost
of acquisition, after reassessment, is recognised immediately in

profit or loss.

When a group entity transacts with its associate, profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the associate are recognised in
the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate that are not related to the Group.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold in
the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related

taxes.

Sales of goods are recognised when goods are delivered and title
has passed with reference to the sales contracts/shipping terms.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 e P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and
the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income
from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated
future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment have been established.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The
estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of
any changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or, where
shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and
equipment is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A Pk

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

IMPAIRMENT

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. If
the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the
lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the
Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. The
corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and
reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate
of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance
expenses are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Contingent
rentals are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are

incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.
Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are recognised as
an expense in the period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 2 e B

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 %2 ~F——4E0 § =+ H L4

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in the
respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates) at the rates of
exchanges prevailing on the dates of transaction. At the end of
each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that date.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items,
and on the translation of monetary items, are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise. Exchange differences
arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair
value are included in profit or loss for the period.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements,
the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are
translated into the presentation currency of the Group (i.e. HKS$)
at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end of the reporting
period, and their income and expenses are translated at the
average exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the period, in which case, the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions are used. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity (the translation reserve).

BORROWINGS COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale for which the commencement date for
capitalisation is on or after 1st May, 2009, are added to the cost of
those assets until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme, are charged as an expense
when employees have rendered services entitling them to the
contributions.

TAXATION
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years
and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will
be available against which those deductible temporary differences
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated with such
investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 e P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.  EHEAEFEHECR @)

(continued)

TAXATION (continued) B (40

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end A0 S 0 T 2 R T (L % R 5 3 ] A4 R
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no Wp R B o Sl S T 0] BB AT R A IR BB i6s
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to RIS 1] 2 R Bl B 4y 7 2 A LA H A R T
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. W, e

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that 0% SUE ol TG I % A T AR A A Y R A
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled oRIRE B i O B CE A B R (B
or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have ) o FRTE N B B BUE A s T
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting HZ BLREHA -

period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the PEAERIE A FHEE 25183 i A
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the A (3] T s 30 T 45 R PR T 3 e [ B 1
Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or 7 KA ARIRT(E 2 7 I E A B 45 R -
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax A8 B 3 TR A O R o 0 R TE
is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that B 7 Ay 4 T i A BT 2 A RE g R IE
are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, H > JUJE GE Bl JE TR g A oAt A T YR A B
in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other P RE 2 TSR -

comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

INVENTORIES 1]

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. A7 & Y4 40 WA B W] 5 B O T o 2 RS
Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out method. Net AHR o BUAS TG PASE A S L FTHAE » ATAE B
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course FE A B E AP ERE > W
of business, less the estimated costs of completion and the SRR RO K B Br A st AR A -

estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS LT R

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the G TR A TR B R T R R A
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity T H G #2275 8705 REFE 486 B IR
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. HME N -

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at & RE e R B A R AP EE R
fair value except as stated below. Transaction costs that are directly M IR DU RR A o Wi R AT 4 R
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and AR GEATEF ARG 2 Mg E &
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial S EERIN) 2 BN S S AR TR
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or A TR IRE A 4 Rl & A o il B AR 2 AT
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial {H B A 4 & E B4 i B S 2 A E A3
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs B (P18 DL 2 ) o Wil 3% 8 TERF AR
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or W2 aMEES S EEY BEEILLS
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are R R IRE A 48 25 WD,

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the prior year, an available-for-sale investment was initially TEAFE > Al 8 B BE B0 25 HBAE ROA R
measured at deemed cost, which was the carrying amount of the o fRAE A BB 45 2 B iR AN 45 B O 3
associate at the time when the Group cease to have significant T N Rl A B2 2 s 2 BRI -

influence over the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E#E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into one of three
categories, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), loans and receivables and available-for-sale financial
assets. All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that
require delivery of assets within the time frame established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments, other than those financial assets classified as at
FVTPL, of which interest income is included in net gain or losses.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL are embedded derivatives
separated from the host contract and other derivative financial
instruments.

Derivatives embedded in financial instruments or other host
contracts are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host
contracts, and the host contracts are not measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are deemed as
financial assets held for trading or financial liabilities held for
trading. Derivatives are subsequently remeasured at their fair
value at the end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
of such derivatives is recognised directly in profit or loss.

FEEHBOR (9

Arih M (4)

SR

AL S REE S B = A FER
A (THATEFIARLE ) 2 &/ E
FE B EORE W K T DL R AT A B A 4
FE o i U U E s L SR
FE )52 S F S e R S B IR FERR o DA
F 7 2N B T 3 ZE R T 35 L e B )
S AE 1] 5% R 2 IR [ E 2 oA A 48 W 7 2 4
HEEH -

BRI

BRI STE F w4l B AR R
A7 B ] 1 23 BE ML A 2 07 ik - ELRR A
20 TS 4 Al T T A 0 O R 30 D (A
AT ) TR A Tl R 2 R TR O B PR B B A
FrE AR A RIT AR B 4 (47 o S P ) 2 AL A
o Z B A e AT S E OB~ S5 AR
DA K HE A A a8) 2 A1) e

s TH G R (R AR 2 SRl
FE ) Z RSO TR B A R A RE > Hh AL
WA FE AR i AR o

LRI A 1R i 2 2 B

ASE B % AT RE AR 4R 2 Gl B E T iR
BE 5 290 B 2 i AT AR TR R A
RitEem T A -

v <l T HL BCH A RS AT L 2 AT A
TR J B B A B A4 Sl 0 )
& - ARZSEATAE TR A B i E TR
BEH > MR AT A EEE >
A BRI IR AR RS -

AEERE MG FHE R 2 AT TR
BRABFEEZ cMEERFFRE &
FE AR o TR LA A U TR A R R 4
AL MR o sZ AR TR ML E AR
SR B 1R L P AR A R RR AR,



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 e P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4E0 § =+ H |L4EFF

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.  EHEAEFEHECR @)

(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) AEh T (45)

Financial assets (continued) SR ()

Loans and receivables B RN I

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with B R N IR WA R TE A T E B ] B B AT k2 JE
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active A mvg aE > HAG AL B T 5 s -
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and receivables AW HERAR > Bk M MES R OE (B35 5
(including trade and other receivables, trade receivable due from T HoA RE ik TE > RE ST 4 N F ] - 5 B UE
an associate, bank balances and cash) are carried at amortised DL RSRAT 85 0k B 4 B BB A R0
cost using the effective interest method, less any identified DABE B A AT ] E sk BB s fE A & (R
impairment losses (see accounting policy in respect of impairment OO B R E E I (EEE 2 EETEUR) -

of financial assets below).

Abvailable-for-sale financial assets ] (LA B i B

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are T B A A R E T3S E A BN R B
either designated or not classified as financial assets at FVTPL, A TEFI ARG 2 SRS E - R R E
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments. S EE R BRI & 2 EfTAE T H -
Available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair value at the TG I T 45 R R > ] LGl 4 Al A i
end of the reporting period. Changes in fair value are recognised PTERR R o A TE BB HAh 2 T A
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment RN EEAL AR HESME
revaluation reserve, until the financial asset is disposed of or is FE A B s R Ak > T RE DL AR
determined to be impaired, at which time, the cumulative gain or PG EMN RS2 il s e
loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve is O B A R S0 B 4 g
reclassified to profit or loss (see accounting policy on impairment ZEEHHUR) -

of financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets BREEZ

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for FRVEE (AR A AR ARG 2 4/

indicators of impairment at the end of the reporting period. G ) GO ) AE TR REREAE A S B

Financial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence HE - HEFBEBFRSREEZH

that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the wE R AE B 4 0 & IR — TH BN 22 T i ) A R

initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated future cash BB HIEM 23 2 . H 4 FhE =

flows of the financial assets have been affected. BIARL A L BURE -

For an available-for-sale equity investment, a significant or AL E Y AR EN S - ARitEZ

prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its (R G 5 0k 3 A L A > IR

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment. FhIAE 2 B bE -

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment LT A HAL SRS = S > FE I EETR

could include: (TR

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; . BEIT NELAE 5 A R B A B s
or 9

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in . LY S BN E B AR 4 AT B E
interest and principal payments; or B EHE RS 5 B

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter . AN W] RER A BT S AT

bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4E

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

3.

FEEHBOR (9

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) AT H (45
Financial assets (continued) A (48)
Impairment of financial assets ( continued) A2 I ()

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, an impairment loss is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective evidence that
the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the
impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the exception
of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying amount
of the allowance account are recognised in profit or loss. When a
trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent
period, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent
that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment losses on available-for-sale equity investments will not
be reversed through profit or loss in subsequent periods. Any
increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised
directly in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
investment revaluation reserve.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities. The Group’s financial liabilities are generally classified
into other financial liabilities.
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # %2 ~&F——4E0 § =+ H IL4EFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt
instruments.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables, trust
receipt loans and bill payables, and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the
consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or
loss that had been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao A 2 A Pk

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #% —F ——4EP] H =+ H [F4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(continued)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option granted to the directors and employees of the
group, the fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting
period, if any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the share options reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the share options
reserve will be transferred to retained profits (accumulated losses).

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the directors of the Company are required to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The following are key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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4. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 4. A A W B R R 2 AR O ()
UNCERTAINTY (continued)
IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND Yok ~ BN BB 2 WAt
EQUIPMENT
Determining whether items of property, plant and equipment are A B ~ MBS KA TS E R - 7
impaired requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash- T2 R T il 2 e E AR
generating units to which items of property, plant and equipment BRI (8 A (ELPE A 5T o REORL(0 B (E
have been allocated. The value in use calculation requires the > A 2R E AL S TE MR B & A A AT
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the EAZ RS RE M GEATE R > LG
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in order to AABBUE - WHEBERKB &R DR
calculate the present value. If the actual future cash flows are less WIRE > W2k - BeAs M thAs e E R —2
than expected, further impairment loss on property, plant and WENEE B F——FENUA=+H ¥
equipment may arise. At 30th April, 2011, the carrying amount of 2~ IR TR 2 AR T (E /% 60,066,000 7T
property, plant and equipment is HK$60,066,000 (2010: (Z—Z4 1 51,072,000%70) © #5HH Al
HK$51,072,000). Details of the recoverable amount calculation Iu] 4B HH R A BT 5 149 R o

are disclosed in Note 14.

IMPAIRMENT OF BALANCES WITH A FORMER L — 75 B DS 2 ) &5 ik 2 AL
SUBSIDIARY

The balances with a former subsidiary (Note 17) are subject to B — G T PN B A W) 2 A R (B RE17) ZH A 3%
review for impairment whenever events or changes in A AT ] A B A S8 T M B AR B A (]
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be NETA{E 2 WF S R 5P A WE o BL— R 8
recoverable. The carrying amount of the balances with a former N D2 G R TR () AR T B R R
subsidiary are reviewed at the end of the reporting period with T R a8 2 R AT AT B K B 5 TR 2
reference to availability of objective evidence and indicators SR A R HA &S AR AR ST > DLETAE AT
including any significant financial difficulties of the former [l 4 B A5 O B R FAR T (E o i %
subsidiary in order to assess whether the recoverable amount has RO B B — R B A R 2 & R AR T
declined below the carrying amount. If there is objective evidence (H B R BeW | - HI)B% et 5% 319 R il w2 e (E
that the carrying amount of the balances with a former subsidiary s S0 B T B DA A B R R R A B
may not be recoverable, an impairment loss is recognised in that ZANRERR I S EFFTE o AF
period and is measured as the difference between the carrying FER > OB RR (B S 48 40 2,342,0009 06 (—
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows LA ) c MEE——AFUA =+
discounted at the original effective interest rate. During the year, H B — [ Ry B B 2 ) 4% B L (E 8 2 ME T
an impairment loss of approximately HK$2,342,000 (2010: Nil) {H 453,029,000 70 ( —F—F4E 1 7,458,000
has been recognised. The carrying amount of balances with a WIo) °

former subsidiary after impairment as at 30th April, 2011 was
HK$3,029,000 (2010: HK $7,458,000).

5. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 5. WARBAL
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group AL A MG AR AR A [ 2 B e
will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the U FR A AR (R R R LA B 4R
return to equity holders through the optimisation of the debt and Pl R RE fR A AR AR R MR

equity balance.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which AL A AT AT - SR
includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 24, net of cash and cash 24 P EEAEE > FUBRBL & R ER B4 THH
equivalents, and equity attributable to equity holders of the B A R 22 R AN EAG HE 25 (B35 £ 984T
Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and A~ it K BEHEER) o

accumulated losses.
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5.  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a
regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associated with the issued share
capital. The Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends as well as obtaining finance
from banks, if necessary.

6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

R B AT B ()

AR F A B B AR SN o AR Sy
Bl —uRs) > EHEHEEAMA LHC %
AT IBEAS A B 2 BB o A B2 B 1% 25 2 IR A1 M
DA B A 5 B IR 1] R AT ISl TP A
R B AN -

EWTH
A TR

2011 2010 st May, 2009
ZEZNAF

s

— R HA—H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000
THE T T

Financial assets SRR
Loans and receivables (including  £83% M REWHIE (AL 45

cash and cash equivalents) B RERBAEEE)
Auvailable-for-sale financial assets B {{L4 8 4> il & i
Derivative financial instruments {744l T2

Financial liabilities LA
Amortised cost e A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include available-for-sale
investments, trade and other receivables, trade receivable due from
an associate, bank balances and cash, trade and other payables,
trust receipt loans and bill payables, accrued expenses, borrowings
and obligation under a finance lease. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented in a timely and effective manner. There has been no
significant change to the Group’s exposure to market risks or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risk.
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6.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

6.

ST H ()
Yo s L B 4 B S R O (40)

Market risk i3 b B
(i) Currency risk (i) Bk
The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its AL TR EE > HIgWKE

monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are principally
denominated in the functional currencies of respective
group entities, which are mainly HK$ or USD. However,
the Group has purchases, expenses and borrowings
transactions which are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”). The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the management closely
monitors foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the reporting date are as follows:

B R AL 5y B DUM B A T
B2 IRE R (L te e e )
FHE o SR > A EA AR (TA
R FHEZ IR -« B RERR
Gy o NS B IR SIf A0 AT AT A HE S o
BUR o SR - PR 5 ) B P H A
BEE JRURR - DA HE £ BE RV IE A7 250 3 R FX
I o

AL 2 RSN EHE B R E K
B RUR G A IR AT

Assets Liabilities

¥ i
2011 2010 2011 2010

=R

e
HK$000
Tile

S
HK$°000
T

e
HK$°000
T

HK$000
T

Currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major sensitivity
analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in HK$ or USD
against RMB. 5% represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items and adjusts their
translation at the year end for a 5% change in foreign
currency rates. A positive number below indicates a
decrease in loss (2010: an increase in profit) where the
HKS or USD strengthen 5% against the relevant currency.
For a 5% weakening of the HKS or USD against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit/loss, and the amounts below would
be negative.

-I 1,150 E:ﬂ 25,713

B WU o A

N AR T SR T S R BE R
E TR T R 5Yo Ry 2 AR 4 B T B AU
JEGTHT o 5% 2 BB MK MESR 2
BT AR A AL BT AR REAL - BURBE
R 18 6 358475 SR A N0 DA A 2 B
ZEWIEE o S Ak ¥ BE R B 5%
53 B AT IR JH H 2 AR S IR AT R
fii o TRZIEBEAEITH LTI
Bl B R A 5% R 2 M 1R (—
T T AN - Wonesen
SEAH R £ I 500 N R
P2 JEEE VST A T
AT R W o
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

BT H )
o 85 Bl B 4% B A B OO ()

Market risk (continued) T 35 B (7))
(i) Currency risk (continued) (i) B ()
Currency sensitivity analysis (continued) BB A BT (4
2010
TR
HK$’000
THIn
Profit/loss for the year AERERR R 1R
RMB N
A 5% increase and decrease in HK$ or USD against RMB o FE e N R ESR R
would not have a material impact on the other equity of Rok 50/ A 368 A £ B8 L A E s A9 o
the Group. KAH o
(i) Interest rate risk (ii)  FIFE R

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to its obligation under a finance lease. The
management will consider hedging significant fair value
interest rate risk should the need arise.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest
rate on interest-bearing financial assets and financial
liabilities, which are mainly balance with banks which are
short term in nature, and trust receipt loans and
borrowings which carry interests at the Hong Kong prime
rate, plus a margin. It is the Group’s policy to keep its
borrowings at floating rate of interests so as to minimise
the fair value interest rate risk.

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based
on the exposure to variable interest rates for non-derivative
instruments at the end of the reporting period. For
variable-rate interest bearing financial assets and
borrowings, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of asset and liability outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A 10
or 100 basis point represents management’s assessment of
the reasonably possible change in variable interest rate
bearing financial assets and liabilities respectively.

The impact of changes of interest rate for financial assets
would have no material impact on the profit or loss for
both years and other equity of the Group.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. Ak T H ()

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND Yo 5 D ot 4 P ) A B OO ()

POLICIES (continued)

Market risk (continued) Wi 35 B (78)

(ii)  Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FUFE S (4H)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis (continued) I SRR 43 (%)
If interest rates of financial liabilities had been 100 basis A1k 48 RS A1 | Bl k1001 £
point higher/lower and all other variable were held B BT HoAh s AR AR A
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30th April, EHEE - F—-—FNHA=+THIE
2011 would increase/decrease by HK$200,000 (profit for AEBE 7 e TR E S B m, 3822 200,000
the year ended 30th April, 2010 would decrease/increase BT (BE F—F4FENA =+H 1k
by HK$69,000). A B 2 i P D B8 169,000

o) °

(iii)  Equity price risk (iii)  EAEIE
The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation to its PN PEr e S & S E /N
available-for-sale investments which are measured at fair TEFF R 2 T 1 AR A A
value at the end of the reporting period. The management B JE B o 8 PRI o I A AR 5% G
manages this exposure by reviewing these investments & FELAERE IR o
regularly.
Equity price sensitivity analysis JBeAS B s TR 3 3 AT
The sensitivity analysis below has been determined DL SRR B 40 A T AR B k5 40
assuming that the change in prices had occurred at the end G R IRE 4% M LB A 2 ) 37 0 1 T
of the reporting period and had been applied to the AL M LR B ] B R K
exposure to price risk for the Group’s available-for-sale A1 2B 4wl TR P T 3 A 6 A R B
investments and derivative financial instruments at that 1M 72 o SRS & M F IR M 5E 15
date. As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial praf > T F —FE_H+—H >
statements, on 11th February, 2010 the shareholders of YAk S i T A B AT B T
ASAT passed resolutions to place ASAT into voluntary B R AT 19 AR N 22 Pk
liquidation and appoint joint voluntary liquidators to Lo EFE—FE+H -+ "H >
implement the liquidation and on 22nd October, 2010, Y AR SRR B o KL > BERIK L2
ASAT was dissolved. As a result of such events, G B LR - R T %
investment in ASAT was derecognised on that date. As at FWUA=Z+H > ARAAIHEERS
30th April, 2010, in the opinion of the directors of the At =R /NS X PR @i
Company, the fair value of the derivative financial AT E o P F—FERK
instruments were approximately zero due to the liquidation “E-—FNHA=Z+H ETRE
of ASAT and such instruments were not included in the S EEH AT SV BUREE 4347 -
following sensitivity analysis as at 30th April, 2010 and
2011.
A 10% change in equity prices represents the 10% 1 B4 (8 4% 5 ) > ARG g
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible AR 2 A AT REsEAL BT 1 th R EA
changes in prices.
If the prices of the respective instruments had been 10% MW HE TR E& BT T 2%
higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, 10% > HLBT A Fo A 5 SR 35 R 58
the investment revaluation reserve would increase/decrease 5 oA 4 R P B R U
by HK$299,000 (2010 increase/decrease by HK$478,000) 28 T (B 5 B i 34 9872 299,000
as a result of the changes in fair value of available-for-sale W ( F — AR - 8w
investments. 478,000 7T) °
The Group’s exposure to equity price risk from the ALEE R A LR E 2 RAE
available-for-sale investments has not changed significantly 6 JELBS B — 4R AH H A B RS o

from the prior year.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the
counterparties failure to perform their obligations as at 30th April,
2011 and 2010 in relation to each class of recognised financial
assets is the carrying value of those assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other
receivables as set out in Notes 17 and 19 respectively. The amounts
of trade receivables presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables. In
order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group is
responsible for determination of credit limits and credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures are carried out to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the
Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual trade
and other debt at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The board of directors has delegated the management to be
responsible for the assessment of the financial position of
individual debtors and for determination of monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow up action is taken to recover
overdue debts. The management will remind debtors of the
amount of outstanding receivables and the dates of settlement to
advise them to settle receivables promptly.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the
counterparties are banks with high credit-ratings.

The Group is exposed to concentration of credit risk on its trade
receivables. As at 30th April, 2011, 14% (2010: 18%) of trade
receivables is due from the Group’s largest customer and 30%
(2010: 28%) of trade receivables is due from the other four largest
customers of the Group. The Group is also exposed to
concentration of credit risk on its receivable from the former
subsidiary of HK$3,029,000 (2010: HK$5,958,000), as described
in Note 17.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and
maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate
by the management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, and to
arrange additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and longer term.

BT H ()
Y0 s e B 4 B RS R O (#)
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DA DR B IR 2 5 e i ] A 0 R A 2 £
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M35 755 A\ ) oA £ 752 B SO L < 9 B 8
W AR AP R I GIOA

H A 22 53 38 07 oy B AT v 1 BT A 2 3R AT
BB & 2 R B R AR -

A A [E) 1 B 5 I i K T T S P A A
B o A E——4FMNHA=TH > BHHE
WO TE 2 14% ( —F— 4 1 18%) B B
AL B KEF 2P > W30% ( —F—%F
A 28%) RIS B ASE B 53 AN 2 i K&
5 2 BRIE o AN R 17 B 5 AR S 1 AR Ak
JRE WAL T A e 2 ) 2 I 3,029,0009 06 ( — &
—ZAE 15,958,0004% 7T) I EHME SEAE PR -

LB G M B

T PR B A R BRIRE > A B I B R R
T P w8 AL A0 0 B e M A (R B TH H
WA > DA AR MR E RS E e
PR R B A R R o AR 2 BUR
2oy R S 42 T B LMD U ) e R A
FORE sy S SR A 2 H UL - A% PERANRAT
AR o AR MERE S R BL e o LR
AHAE A R AR I T B e 7 oK
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 6. ST H )
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND Yo o gt 4 B H B B BORE (4
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) LB B (75
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual AR AN S A B RN S A
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been drawn up PR DL o T 26 T MR 95 A 4R [ ] BE B R A
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based R H e A 2 R
on the earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay. M4 - FFAE > ReameRAT /24 A nl pet
Specifically, bank loans and obligations under finance leases with FEAT A HRE R - 605 ] BB R R MR K
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest time ZSRAT R R B FH A R I Y wE A B R
band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing to ] [ 2 PRy o A IR A7 AR T A Y
exercise their rights. The maturity dates for other non-derivative FIHA H DA bh 7 R H A 4 BRE o

financial liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

The table includes both interest and principal cash flows. To the TEAFAHERASE ST E - FHER
extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted wATFEIAR AR o RN AR T %
amount is based on interest rate at the end of the reporting period. SR 1) P 5 TR R 2 ISR GHEAR H -

Liquidity and interest rate tables I B R

Weighted Total
average Repayable Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate on demand Iyear  Ito2years  Over2years cash flows amount

i Ak RSB e

FHAR  TORIHE 1 1#2% OFRE R Werifi
% HKS00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
T T T T T T

2011 v S
Trade and other payables 8 5 B 0 - 44036 44036 44036
Trust receipt loans —variable ~ EEUEER— 78 . - 12,286 12,286 12225
Bill payables FEft otk - 1,133 1,133 1,133
Accrued expenses g6 - 22341 25,570 25,570
Borrowings - variable EE-F8 . 7,786 - 7,786 7,786
Borrowings from a director ~ #HHEE 10,539 - 10,539 10,539
Obligation under finance lease ~ BH&1AT&E ! 964 445 1,683 1,637
19,289 80,241 103,033 102926
2010 “R-RE
Trade and other payables 5 B E e R - - 3499 - - 34,99 34,996
Trust receipt loans - variable  EFfddEEH— 128 6.0 - 2,938 - - 2938 2N
Acerued expenses TR 2 - - 33,763 3,555 - 37318 37318
Borrowings - variable fEE-28 58 4113 - - - 4113 4113
Borrowings from a director EE - 10,539 - - - 10,539 10,539
Obligation under a finance lease  f F 41 &H: 43 - 338 26 - 564 527
14,652 72,035 3,781 - 90,468 90,265
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The following table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
loans and obligations with a repayment on demand clause based
on agreed scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreement.
The amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. As a result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “repayable on demand” time band in the
maturity analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not believe that it is probable that the
banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand immediate
repayment. The directors believe that borrowings and obligations

BT H )
Yo 4 g 4 L D OO ()

Bl e L B (761

T M AR A D el G S TELE R
H > L5 ] Bl IR R AR e 4R AT 5
KSR E 3T o A7 B RO AR 1% 5 4
ARG 2 FLEAT R - B B HER
T b 2t 3 1 3 A7 e Tl B ey R A A €
e 2 WO o B EE L 2 MBSIRDL > HE
Re Ay > SRATANTTREAT (I AE - IR
SRR o AN o R KRS AR
AR A B B B AL A4 1 sl G 16 5 7L
SEME H W - (3R H IR WA R (iR

under finance leases will be repaid two years after the reporting
date in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in
the loan and lease agreements.

Weighted Total
average Less than undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Iyear  1to2years  Over2years cash flows amount

i RSB e

AR 1 1E26 RE AR Wi
%  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOM0  HKSOW  HKSO0

% Ti7 TikT Tk Tikn Tikn

011 Rk

Borrowings - variable EH-F8 37 7,858 7858 7,786

Obligations under finance leases MEmLkE . 1,184 1,705 1,637
9,042 9,563 9423

2010 “R-%k

Borrowings - variable EE-17E 58 2,114 2367 - 4481 4113

Obligation under a finance lease gk 43 38 26 - 564 527
2452 2,593 - 5,045 4,640

Fair value AP

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are
determined as follows:

SREERERARZ AP EEENT

. the fair values of financial assets with standard terms and .
conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;
and

SEAEHE AR L AR A B 0 A 15 A
BWIGZo 2 G MEE 2 NETY
SHE RS R E TR E 5 &

. the fair values of other financial assets and financial .
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis.

FoAth < Tl e B AR 2 T
T DA BB 4 i A oy e 2 —
e e ERR E -

The carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
carried at amortised cost approximate their respective fair values
due to the relatively short-term maturity of these financial
instruments.

G AR 91 B 22 < T < B IR
T SLE A5 B 2 (AR - R A
A T L TP L I ] PR 38

405
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value (continued)

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial
position

At the end of the reporting period, the financial instruments that
are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value are
available-for-sale investments. The fair value measurements are
derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in an active market.

TURNOVER

Turnover represents the amounts received and receivable for goods
sold by the Group to outside customers less sales returns and
discounts.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM?”), for the
purpose of resources allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on the location of customers.

The customers of the Group are currently located in the United
States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong, Europe, the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”), Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore
and other Asian countries (Which represent aggregation of other
non-reportable operating segments under HKFRS 8).

AT H ()
S e B 4 P B B SR (50)

AP ()
TR B DR W8 < 2T (E

RS IR - R AR AR LA T R B
M TR ESRE - A-FEE
FTE B 75 2 A ORAETH ) 1541 -

BREH
BEERA RS REFHE RS2 E
i J AT B 0 ] S B o

g yegis

LR T B o VS 2 B A 1) A
W ([ EEGEPRE D AR FATE
FHRE B ROR > TSR A% BT LE A S

AL E S H AT AL R B R (T 58
B 1)~ AR B A ARIEANE (T
B 1)~ EME - ISARTTEL - B S A
0P I 5 (R 7 7 B 5 R A M RS R R I T
FHoAty JF oy #h KL T2 MR -
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8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued) 8. AR
SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS Vg LiE-Y &3
The following is an analysis of the Group’s turnover and results by DU 25 AR S5 [0 6 B 3 S8 4 AT it iR 2
reportable segment: A

Turnover Segment results

BRH Vg =

2011 2010 2011 2010

ZRME DR R SRR R FF

HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000

TH#L TH#n TH#L TH#on

USA B 43,005 33,015 353 4,498
Hong Kong i 8,764 9,757 179 1,683

Europe BRI 4,028 1,419 114 256
PRC H [ 135,424 136,027 1,594 21,770

Philippines SFHE 21,824 20,361 575 3,681
Malaysia )i 5% ik 37,761 34,430 1,067 6,225
Singapore Hrmk 23,853 20,293 673 3,669

Reportable segment total CIE S S 274,659 255,302 4,555
Other Asian countries FHoAth BE I B % 82,808 73,273 2,219

357,467 328,575 6,774

Eliminations Eagi] (3,469) - -
Group’s turnover and SR 3 K

segment results AR E S 353,998 325,287 6,774 55,012
Depreciation of property, VI~ WA MG 2

plant and equipment e (10,962) (9,412)
Impairment losses on balances H1— ¢ Fiifft i /A 745 4

with a former subsidiary Z WAE R (2,342) -
Gain on disposal of property, &2 ~ Wi Lkt

plant and equipment Z s 20 14
Losses arising from changes in {74z 4> il T HL\ - (B3

fair value of derivative BEA 2 EE

financial instruments (1,213)
Imputed interest income I T B e S LAt B ik

on non-current interest-free  JE.Z fEFEFLE WA

other receivable 1,251
Interest income for convertible 7] #5512 F1| &

preferred shares A 6,121
Unallocated interest income A BiFLE WA 19
Unallocated corporate A TCAS SEE R 5T

management expenses (5,548) (19,525)
Interest on bank and other JERN AR N A E R

loans wholly repayable RAT R HAD R

within five years FLE (786) (753)
Share of loss of an associate M5B 2\ w518 - (6,433)

(Loss) profit before taxation  BEBLAT (E518) i A (12,125)
Included in the USA and PRC reportable segments are revenue e B K v R W] R 0 A B 4 ER T WA 43
from inter-segments of HK$3,308,000 (2010: HK$3,261,000) and Al £43,308,0007 70 ( —FE—F4F : 3,261,000
HKS$161,000 (2010: HK$27,000) respectively. W IT) M 161,000 70 (—F —F4F 1 27,000
#It) o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A 2 A PR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #%& ~F——4E H =+ H [R4EE

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENT REVENUES AND RESULTS (continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the same as
the Group’s accounting policies described in Note 3. Segment
profit represents the profit from each segment without allocation
of directors’ remuneration, corporate management expenses,
depreciation, impairment losses on balances with a former
subsidiary, gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment,
share of loss of an associate, losses arising from changes in fair
value of derivative financial instruments, imputed interest income
on non-current interest-free other receivable, interest income for
convertible preferred shares and finance costs. This is the measure
reported to the CODM for the purposes of resources allocation
and performance assessment.

Intersegment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.
SEGMENT ASSETS
The follows is an analysis of the Group’s assets by reportable

segment:

Segment assets

I E R a0

vig L€y &3 {6

S0 52D 2 G SO B R 3 T A S
SHECHARE o 43800 G A B &2
| o TSI S0 0 T 2 4~ 3 A P Y
S TR B T B T4 R 2 W
B E - B~ HTS BRI~ Ay
TGS A 7 2 G R - AT 4 TR A T
SR 2 IR - T A i K
T 2 R A - T S i
WA K Bl LA o T TR I M A B
S ) T A PR BRI SR e

S RIS 2 T B TR 35
SR

LR A 4 B 45 28 ) U
ST -

g 3903

2011 2010
S e

HK$°000 HK$000
T#x T#ETT

5,395
642
1,238
25,970
3,064
5,787
3,681

45,777
17,465

63,242

60,066
46,121

8,952
11,642

USA FE
Hong Kong Hil
Europe TR
PRC B
Philippines FHE
Malaysia L5y QuiEH]
Singapore EIIEd
Reportable segment total AR B AT
Other Asian countries HAEE I R
Unallocated i
Property, plant and equipment W - AR IR
Inventories Pty
Bank balances and cash SATHEBR B
Other unallocated assets oAt A i
Consolidated total assets A EREME

190,023 192,798
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Fo o B 255 A Fi

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENT ASSETS (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, all assets are allocated to
operating segments other than property, plant and equipment,
interest in an associate, investment in convertible preferred shares
—loan portion, other receivable, inventories, deposits and
prepayments, available-for-sale investments, derivative financial
instruments and bank balances and cash. No segment information
on liabilities is presented as such information is not regularly
reported to the chief operating decision maker for the purpose of
resource allocation and performance assessment.

OTHER SEGMENT INFORMATION NOT INCLUDED
IN THE MEASUREMENT OF SEGMENT RESULT

bR s

I VB R (4)

B 3 5 S T 4 0 P 4 R
T OHEEGARELENE > A
TR - RIS RCGR - WE ATIRER - A
e P48 S8 P B — B4y - HU M ek
TE - AERE - Fied S T EOE - AT R B
B R A TR L R SRAT R R B4 o
A B2 08 43 8 R A6 VA D %
KB LB ORE B I
1 T AT B o

w2 TSR AR A 56 2 S0l 2 T R

Depreciation of property,

plant and equipment
Yk - BB BT
2011 2010
S
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L THIT

1,285
203
125

4,194
676

1,172
740

USA g

Hong Kong GiRTE

Europe B

PRC HE
Philippines FHE
Malaysia 5y QU
Singapore ST
Reportable segment total AR A R
Other Asian countries oA ERH K

8,395
2,567

10,962

GEOGRAPHICAL INFORMATION

The Group’s non-current assets other than financial instruments
by geographical location of the assets is amounted to
HK$60,904,000 (2010: HK$51,072,000) which is located in the
PRC.

b I

A [ (57 A v R e T A b [ 4 2 JE
WENE E (AIE 4@ T H) 560,904,000
JO (& —EAF 1 51,072,00047T) ©
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —&——4p0 H =+ H 1E4F B

8. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR CUSTOMERS
Revenue from customers of the corresponding years contributing
over 10% of the total sales of the Group are as follows:

I E R a0

AR EE P ZER

TR AR B A AR S5 B B AR IR 10% 2 &
F2Ig2smr -

2011
gt

HK$°000
T#x

2010

e
HK$°000
TH

Customer A — PRC FFEH— 56,670
Customer B - USA BF 2 — B 36,271

92,941

! The corresponding revenue did not contribute over 10% of the
total sales of the Group.

INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR PRODUCTS

The Group operates solely the manufacture and sale of
leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks and
stiffeners.

9.  OTHER INCOME

Sales of by-products and scrap

(HERE VTN

interest-free other receivable

Gain on disposal of property, plant and ~ HEYZE - a8 K 2 A

equipment
Interest income on bank deposits SATARZ AR
Interest income for convertible AR SR R A
preferred shares
Sundry income HETEIRA

I i S R B
Imputed interest income on non-current I i B G S5 He A IS B 2

! R B e i Sl S0 1 A S R 6 A O
10% ©

(i) BRI P

A A T KR 0 B T ARE > ELAR AR
SR B 5 ARAE ~ B B AR AR 2 SEH

Fefb A

2011 2010
—

—E
HK$°000 HK$°000
T TitE

13,746

713
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10. TAXATION 10. B

The charge comprises: BIE S A5
PRC Enterprise Income Tax P A SE T B
Deferred tax IRIEFIH

2010
e

HKS$°000
THIT

(1,027) (1,530)
1 -

(1,028) (1,530)

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profit for both years.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the
Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from Hong
Kong during the year ended 30th April, 2011.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as one
of the subsidiaries’ assessable profit generated in Hong Kong is
wholly absorbed by tax losses brought forward and the other
subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong incur tax losses for the year
ended 30th April, 2010.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% from 1st January, 2008
onwards.

B RN ASBE T AR 52 v A 4 B2 G 5 E SR
U B R 16.5%5HE o

R AEEHREE - F——FNA=1+H
1l 4 2SI 7 7 o E AR 2 A R E R ik
A > TG S A A RS BT 4 A

P PP — R R T 2 ) 7 ol A 2 MR
Pt i 1) 26 B R AR T 2 BUIE R FR AR - B
A T e AL 2 Wi A AU AR R %
A =1 H AR E AR B > B
SN0 40 0 5 A A AT L JE A

AR B A SEPT R BLA ([ A SEPT A% )
LA SR BUEE GG > A —FF /4
—H— B > B A R 2 B I25% o

I A
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——4 A =+ H L4

10. TAXATION (continued) 10.

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the (loss) profit
before taxation per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

BEIH (40
AR A JBE B T S ) B A A 2 THT WA 3 T
W BT (4R 166 A1) 2 SRS F -

income as follows:

(Loss) profit before taxation

2011
gt

2010
e
HKS$°000
it

HK$°000
T#x

RBLAT (E518) 6 7 (12,125)

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5%

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose

Tax effect of income not taxable for
tax purpose

Tax effect of non-assessable profits
(non-allowable losses) of offshore
operation

Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
operating in PRC

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax losses previously not
recognised

Utilisation of deductible temporary
differences previously not recognised

Under provision in prior year

Effect of share of loss of an associate

A B FIEBIBR16.5%kH
ZBIH
ANET AL B S 2 BB R

2,001 (4,138)

(884) (1,194)
WHEFRBIA 2 B 2
373 1,488
B 255 2 BHERR B A OR AT 0B
T8 2 B R
2,504
A HR B 7 2 R 4 A R[] Bl R
2R (864)
KHERBUH W18 2 BLHS 52 (177)
B e ni A R BT S 18
2,504
B SERTARMERR Bz
PR 160
WA R AN 2 (666)

IS A R R Y (1,147)

Tax charge for the year

AAEFEBLIH S (1,530)

Details of deferred taxation are set out in Note 27.

A7 B A S TR I O B 527
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11. (LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11.

(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived at after charging
(crediting) the following items:

Salaries, wages and other staff benefits

Retirement benefits scheme contribution B RAEFFHE{%

i THE R HAM B TAA

ARAE BE (e 1) 6 A
AR () & A 2k (5FA) T3F1IE
H :

2011
g

2010

e
HKS$000
THIL

HK$°000
T

70,924
2,460

750

Equity-settled share-based payment ARG DA {0y By BE R 2
expenses INE
Total staff costs ( Note) B TR (Bf7E)

74,134

Depreciation of property, plant and LYE W ST Y i

equipment
Net foreign exchange loss REE 5. J 12 A
Repair and maintenance expenses MM RAREER L
Allowance for (reversal of) bad and SRIFEHRATEAR (13 1m0
doubtful debts
Auditor’s remuneration AT <5
Operating lease rentals in respect of W g A S

premises

10,962
4,200
18,723

11
1,345

9,351

Note:  Directors’ emoluments are included in the above staff costs.

12. (LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE 12.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

(Loss) profit for the purposes of basic and I LA 45 B LA il

diluted (loss) earnings per share (BeR) B 2 Ofs18) i A1)
Weighted average number of FAAFHR AR IBEA e

ordinary shares for the purpose of B (Rt8) A2

calculating basic and diluted (loss) e T2 B

earnings per share

The computation of diluted (loss) earnings per share does not
assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
as the exercise prices of the share options of the Company are
higher than the average market price per share for the year ended
30th April, 2011 and 2010.

(HK$13,153,000%#¢)

BfFE . FESME CASETE B B TR A -

b (R 8
A AT M A 1 T A I O 4
BN T35 R ISR

2011
s

HK$23,551,000% 7t

767,373,549

767,359,028

F A AR 2% ) M PBCRE AT (8 5 R A O %
T AE R CE - RENH = H AR
ST - A B Ol 18) &
BRF X7 B A1 e AT (AR 2 ) i R AT o 2 S
HE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A A B

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #%& ~F——4E H =+ H [R4E

13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES 13. w3 KiE B4
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS WA 4
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the five (2010: five) O M L (R —FE Y HEH
directors were as follows: HAHZMEWT

Robert
Patrick Robert Charles Alex
TL Li HP Phen TTSze  Nicholson  CB Wong Total

g BWT RMM REE ERS s
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tir  Tr Tt Tt T#n T

2011 R4
Fees a4 126 500 375 300 1,301
Other emoluments oAb 4

Salaries and other Ho L HAAEF]

benefits 1,474
Retirement benefit B {RARFI7HH]

schemes 83

Share-based payment LA A5 2 SRR 2 93K 90

2010 e S 23
Fees 104 15,788 - 500 375 300 16,963
Other emoluments i Ah 4

Salaries and other Hr e B H A AR R

benefits - 1,163 - - - 1,163
Retirement benefit  iE{K#EAFH#I
schemes 12 58 - - - 70
Share-based payment ARy 2 HERE 2 £ 3K - 211 4 iy} 9 337
15,800 1,432 542 417 342 18,533
The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as MEMAARIER 2SI 2% HME B E
approved by the Board on the recommendation of the AR AR A S A AR 2 ) 2 A
remuneration committee, are having regarded to their individual 5 TR B~ AT 26 M A Y B R T DL o
duties and responsibilities with the Company, remuneration HEHiE -

benchmark in the industry and prevailing market conditions.

For the year ended 30th April, 2011, Mr. TL Li waived MR EE - FE——FNH=+H
emoluments of HK$15,664,000 (2010: Nil). Other than this, there 14 B 52 15,664,000 70 2 B4 ( — % —
was no arrangement under which a director waived or agreed to FTAE ) o BRULLASL » AR E —F——4F
waive any remuneration during the two years ended 30th April, WA=+ H bW FEE R - I 88T
2011. A LA ) AT T P 2 2 B
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13. DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES’ 13, #de R E B4 (a0
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS D L 4
The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals included one A AR EHMA LA — 4 (CF—R4F
(2010: two) executive directors of the Company, whose W& ARANFIATESE > 2T
emoluments are included above. The aggregate emoluments of the B KW (R4 =2) &m
remaining four (2010: three) highest paid individuals are as b NG o E Y (1
follows:

HK$000
TIT

Basic salaries, allowances and other FEARF 4~ HRG A HAt
benefits-in-kind JELURES
Contributions to retirement benefits HRARAR AT B
schemes
Share-based payment VIR A B B 2 A 3K
Their emoluments were within the following bands: A5 2 WA FFIAR A -

2011

B S
Number of Number of
employees employees

(3=VN ¢ i B A%

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,001% 7T — 1,500,00035 7

HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7t — 2,000,0005 G
In both years, no emoluments were paid or payable to the TP TR AR AF B A > AN 4B [ 37 4 AT 0] £ 45 Bk
directors or the five highest paid individuals (including directors MTPEHEALEEHMA L (BEESR R
and employees) as an inducement to join the Company or as 1B B) 24 > 1EE AN 7 2 s /E
compensation for loss of office. o Emk A AE o

L A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o A A PR

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #%& ~F——4E H =+ H [L4E

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. 38 ~ B4 Bet il

Moulds,
Furniture, toolings and
Leasehold  fixtures and Motor Plant and production
improvements equipment vehicles machinery films
iR~ %H TH THE
IES S ik Wi RSESE  AERRRE By
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tr  Fe Tt T Fbx
COST JEA
At Ist May, 2009 REEZIAELA—H 72,512 152,793 2179 566,331 288,096 1,081,911
Exchange adjustments T 5 - 20 - - - 20
Additions NE 313 2609 983 2,098 3,848 7511
Disposals HE - (80) (132) (260) - 4n)
At 30th April, 2010 RZE-FEMA=1A 72,825 153,002 3,030 568,169 291,944 1,088,970
Exchange adjustments T 5 - 3 - - - 3
Additions NE 3,630 465 611 12,156 3,092 19,954
Disposal HE - (3,289) - (18,993) 4,379) (26,657)
At 30th April, 2011 REF——HNA=1H 76,455 150,205 3,041 561,332 290,657 1,082,290
ACCUMULATED PEER e i
DEPRECIATION AND  Ji#i
IMPAIRMENT LOSS
At Ist May, 2009 REEZNELA—A 67,771 152,015 2,091 530,660 276,401 1,028,938
Exchange adjustments T 5 - 20 - - - 20
Provided for the year AR 1,694 252 111 6,104 1,251 9412
Eliminated on disposals i &K 45 - (80) (132) (260) - @n)
At 30th April, 2010 RZE—FEMA=1H 69,465 152,207 2,070 536,504 277,652 1,037,898
Exchange adjustments T S - 21 - - - 21
Provided for the year HAF R 1,556 344 27 6,885 1,890 10,962
Eliminated on disposals ~ Hi#E RFESS - (3.,285) - (18,993) (4,379) (26,657)
At 30th April, 2011 REF——ENA=1H 71,021 149,287 2,357 524,396 275,163 1,022,224
CARRYING VALUES  Mkmifii
At 30th April, 2011 RZE——FMA=1H 5434 918 1,284 36,936 15,494 60,066
At 30th April, 2010 REE-FENA=FH 3,360 795 960 31,665 14,292 51072
At 30th April, 2009 REFFNEDA=1H 4,741 8 88 35,671 11,695 52,973
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % %

14.

—4EH =+ H IR

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated
on a straight-line basis at the following useful lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 - 8 years
Motor vehicles S years
Plant and machinery 6 - 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

The net book value of motor vehicles includes an amount of
HK$1,018,000 (2010: HK$613,000) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

The net book value of plant and machinery includes an amount
of HK$1,470,000 (2010: Nil) in respect of assets held under
finance leases.

During the year, the directors conducted a review of the Group’s
property, plant and equipment and determined that no
impairment nor reversal of impairment for property, plant and
equipment is required.

The recoverable amounts of the property, plant and equipment of
the Group have been determined on the basis of value in use
calculation. That calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by the management covering a
one-year period with a projection of another four years, and
discount rate of 17% (2010: 17%). Cash flows in the projection
period assumed a zero growth rate.

14.

Yk ~ BRAS Bt (s

Eai e - wEAS R IH E DL E AR L S
ey oAl FARI T

LUES 3 84F
1M~ B 54F — 84F
R S
e B R 64F — 124F
TR~ TH B AR R 64

HKEZRMFHECTEABREREHLY
Fir 5 G A 21,018,000 76 ( —F — F4E
613,000%7C) ©

WA I Bt 2 AR F (A5 A AR IR A&
FHE PR & 7 2 1,470,000 7 ( & —F
o) o

AR TR A 22k - B
B o MR8 2 BEE R 3 ~ M Mt
PE (B B (B A ]

ALY~ B SR 2 T ] R TS
R T 2 AR 22 LRT R
R 457 B i bt o4 NI 25— 47 30 Bt 5 A
VR TR T 2 B B A ) B 4 O e LI DA
K17% ( ZB—F4 2 17%) Z R - TE
IR A 2 B4 R DA T S 5 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——4 A =+ H L4

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. BB A vkERR
2010 1st May, 2009
ZERIAF
TR i H—H
HKS$°000 HKS$’000
TWHIT T
Listed investment outside Hong Kong LIS NZ ETHRE

Cost of investment BE WA 22,424 22,424

Share of post-acquisition losses Iy IR 2 BB s

and reserves (22,424) (22,424)

Quoted value of listed investment [SF TESIE:'s<pai-{I:] - 11,735

The interest in an associate in the prior year represented the
Group’s 43.22% interest in the issued ordinary share capital of
ASAT, a limited company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and its shares were listed on the NASDAQ prior to 17th April,
2008. ASAT group was principally engaged in the provision of
assembly and testing of integrated circuits in the PRC.

On 2nd March, 2009, ASAT announced that it had entered into
forbearance agreements with its lenders. Under the terms of the
forbearance agreements, the lenders agreed to forbear from
exercising their rights and remedies against ASAT group arising
out of certain designated defaults until 30th August, 2009, subject
to certain early termination events. On 1st June, 2009, ASAT
announced that it has reached an agreement in principle with a
majority of its creditors on the terms of a consensual financial
restructuring of the obligations of ASAT group (“ASAT
Financial Restructuring”). On 31st August, 2009, ASAT
announced that it has received an extension to the forbearance
period of an additional 30 consecutive days till 29th September,
2009. On 3rd January, 2010, ASAT announced that it had
reached an agreement with a third party to sell all the shares in
ASAT Limited, a wholly owned subsidiary of ASAT, which was
itself the indirect parent of ASAT Semiconductor (Dongguan)
Limited, the only operating subsidiary of ASAT, and the
transaction was completed on 4th February, 2010. On 11th
February, 2010, the sharecholders of ASAT passed resolutions to
place ASAT into voluntary liquidation and appoint joint
voluntary liquidators to implement the liquidation. On 25th
March, 2010, the Supervision of the Grand Court of Cayman
Islands granted the orders for voluntary liquidations of ASAT
and also appointed the liquidators. The Group’s interest in an
associate was transferred to available-for-sale investments as it
was no longer able to exercise significant influence over the
associate upon the commencement of voluntary liquidations of
ASAT.

Wk s 2 i) HE 2 i 2 4 74 42 [ T 45 A B =
B 5k ST 2 A R F 4K S B B AT
W A 2 43.20% ME 25 > GEAR SC 2 A
R NEM H 4B H R AE &
(NASDAQ) LT o &4k SC4E M) 4= B A [
PRAIL A 1 R B 2 I SO R A

RTEREREZ] TH > SRCEME B
O RO T 7 S0 030 1 th e o AR R B S
ik 2 ek > BN IR Bt A T8 2
RYAAT (A3 55 136 4 R SCAR I 2 HE AR B A
SR AR > e B2 T R AT A IR SR RR
fil > BEZEFEZAFENA=ZFHIE R
TRIVEARH—H > BIKSCEM C IR
F8 23 EURE A 4 R SR 1 B R S
B E AL ([ 4R SO B F AL ) oo sl
Pethak o RM-FENFENA=Z+—H > 4
WICE M L E TR EA Y > R
MIRAREIMEE=TH  HE-FENR
FRAZTARLE R EF—FFE-A=
Hoo AR SCE il 5 2 g 2 ) 4
MRSCRHH AT RS W A A IRy B — 44 56 =7
M > SEAROCRHA IR A LA B Ty 4t
RSL 2 M — 5 75 R g > W) S R S O
58) ARA A ZHE A > ZHER -F
—FEZHMHASER - R F—FEA
T—H o RSO R P R K
SOEAT B IBUE M > M RATHOR A BB A
ETER - R-F-FF=AZ+HH
B 2 05 DRk g B B 4 SR 1 IR A
A AT TN o R 4R SR i B R
RASE B RE P2 IS N FAT RO
By AR AR BRI AN F 2 AR R R
AEE R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——40 A =+ H L4

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE (continued) 15.

The Group recognised share of loss of the associate up to 24th
March, 2010 amounting to HK$6 million (2009: HK$9 million),
the date when the Group lost significant influence in the associate.
The recognition of the share of loss of associate resulted in
reducing the carrying amount of the Group’s net investment in
ASAT, comprising the investment cost in and the loan portion of
investment in convertible preferred shares of ASAT (Note 16), to
nil as ASAT was in a net liabilities position. The Group
discontinued the recognition of its share of further losses of
ASAT. The accumulated unrecognised share of losses amounted
to HK$383 million as at 30th April, 2008.

On 22nd September, 2010, the Grand Court of Cayman Islands
ordered that ASAT was dissolved on 22nd October, 2010.

16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE 16.

PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Investment in convertible preferred 7] # % {5 S IR &

shares — loan portion — B
Less: Loss allocated in excess of  Ji, : MK E A2
cost of investment BBk TE

78-79

B A FIERR (50
ALEEC MRS A A HE - F
FTAE = H DU HO(RD A 4 E e X 5%
MATZEREEHZHY) Z kR
Q%M%%EAgi?ﬂ$'9%M%%
o P A SEAR SR B IR FUIR DL - e
E%M%%&?%E%ﬁﬁ%@m%mi
B VT R TR L (R AR ST R 4 2
J 22 B A B 2 G (B REL6))
WEE - $%@E%¢ﬁnAQM%Wi
2T - A T EE ) AEMNA =Z+HH > BiF
WAk 5 8 £5 383,000,000 T

REF-RESAZTZH > HEREXR

B S KOO &~ F A
H L -

B B S B B A A A T

2010 1st May, 2009
=
e S 2:2 HA—H

HK$’000 HK$°000
THIT THIT

48,013 41,892

48,013) (41,892)




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

16. INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE
PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Derivative financial instruments reclassified as non-current assets:

Investment in convertible preferred 1] #a B Je LA &
— Y BB
AR

shares — conversion option
Investment in warrants

In July 2005, the Company entered into a securities purchase
agreement with Asia Opportunity Fund, L.P. and its affiliate
funds (“AOF”), which held approximately 28.9% of the issued
ordinary shares of ASAT, and ASAT in relation to a USD15
million financing (equivalent to approximately HK$117 million)
for ASAT, of which the Group contributed USD7.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$58 million). ASAT issued
300,000 convertible preferred shares for a total price of USD15
million (equivalent to approximately HK$117 million),
representing an issue price of USDS50 per convertible preferred
share, to be purchased by AOF and the Group in equal
proportions. In October 2005, the Group invested USD7.5
million (equivalent to approximately HK$58 million) for 150,000
convertible preferred shares for the equivalent amount at an issue
price of USDS50 per convertible preferred share at a preferred
dividend rate of 13% per annum, payable semi-annually in
arrears. Each convertible preferred share was, at any time and
from time to time, convertible, at the option of the holder, into
ordinary shares of ASAT at an adjusted conversion price resetting
equal to USDO0.065 per ordinary share (equivalent to USD0.975
per ADS), subject to customary adjustment for share splits,
dividends, re-combinations and similar transactions. The
contractual exercise period for conversion option was from 27th
October, 2005 to 4th May, 2011.

16, VI BB SR B B ¥E i A ik TR

(%)

Rt TR EH 5 IR IR E EE

2010 1st May, 2009
o
TR i H—H

HK$°000 HK$°000
Tt Tt

- 1,048
- 163

- 1,211

ATEFERAFLH > AR A B 244K SC
#128.9% CL ¥ T 4 it 2 Asia Opportunity
Fund, L.P. X H 54 ([AOF ) K444k
SC ol B 4 4K ST 4E 15,000,000 3£ T (K E
A #1117,000,000 7 I ) (H: b 7 42 ) &
7,500,000 3 7T - AH i %7 58,000,000 %5 7T )
FT LR SR I B R o SRR ST AR AR Sy
15,000,000 3 7t (A8 & A £ 117,000,000 #5
J6) Z 300,000 i AT i A B S i (R8T
T B T 4 B e RES0 95 00) - HAOF &
ARAEE D ER LB E o R AT
H > AREHE T E7,500,0005% 7T (FHE R4
58,000,000 35 JC ) ¢ 385 478 45 1 W] 84 it 445 ot
JBE50 35 ST 15 A 150,000 5% ] 48 5 48R S i > 18
P e B BREEAE13% » B2 AF AT o AT
i 5 18 51 B ] B e R S R o R A s R
AR FH S 7 4 A 4 4 1 0.065 35 T
(OFH 5 A B I TR RE R 250,975 35 70 ) T4 /0% 4%
WRSC 2 A T % AE A T S R A
B B~ F A B MR S s B A R
oo ORI A AT A —F T
FrA-tTFEHE-Z——FERLANH -
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % %

16.

17.

—4EH =+ H IR

INVESTMENT IN CONVERTIBLE 16.

PREFERRED SHARES/DERIVATIVE
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements,
on 11th February, 2010 the shareholders of ASAT passed
resolutions to place ASAT into voluntary liquidation and
appointed joint voluntary liquidators to implement the
liquidation. On 25th March, 2010, the Supervision of the Grand
Court of Cayman Islands granted the orders for voluntary
liquidations of ASAT and also appointed the liquidators. The
Group’s interest in ASAT was transferred from investment in an
associate to available-for-sale investment as it was no longer able
to exercise significant influence over ASAT upon the
commencement of voluntary liquidations of ASAT. In the
opinions of the directors of the Company, as a result of such
events, at 30th April, 2010, the recoverable amount of the loan
portion of the investment in convertible preferred shares was zero
and the fair value of the conversion option of the convertible
preferred shares and the warrants were also approximately zero,
resulting in losses arising from changes in fair values of
approximately HK$1 million recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 30th April,
2010.

On 22nd September, 2010, the Grand Court of Cayman Islands
ordered that ASAT was dissolved on 22nd October, 2010. The
Group’s investment in convertible preferred shares and derivative
financial instruments were derecognised at the end of the
reporting period. No gain or loss has been recognised upon
derecognition.

BALANCES WITH A FORMER SUBSIDIARY  17.

On 20th February, 2009, the Group entered into an agreement to
dispose of a wholly owned subsidiary, Talent Focus Industries
Limited (“TFIL”) and the disposal was completed before 30th
April, 2009. TFIL agreed with the Group to repay the outstanding
amount included in other receivables due to the Group of
HK$7,000,000, which was unsecured and interest-free, in seven
monthly equal instalments from 1st September, 2010 to 31st
March, 2011. The fair value of the other receivable at the date of
disposal of TFIL was estimated to be HK$4 million which was
determined based on a discount rate of 29.7%.

B S I B R A i T

(#4)

PN A A S R M R 1S Ak > i —
FEZHAT—H o SR SO AR R
Z o ARSCGEST AIEER > W RTHE B
B NETES - R F-FF=H
TR H o BT KR B B A A SR AR S
B S B AT B o H R K SO B R
A MR 1% A AR T A Al T 3 R o S R AT
i KRR » MOAREmPE S AT 2
HE 2 B 33 B v L B 4K - AN FIHE R
By oo B bl R FE AR H =
T H > AR R R 2 BG4y 2 AT
Wi I B B o T ] AR AR S I 2 4R g
FEME SRR RS 2 AN THIRIE A E > (Il
R E T -FENA = HIEEE 24
B AN R MR A T E A & A 2
$H491,000,000% JC -

ROEFENA T H - RS
B A R OOR S E B
AR« ¢ S e S P 2
T L2 O L A 0 4L
o HE AL TR AT (TS -

Bl — 28 i B 2 ) 2 A5 B
WOBEBNEHTH  REBEZ S —
Hifhak » hELEHBA R REEEGR
AENTERED > HEDR - FEILFENA
= H AT TE AR o B A AN SR T B R L F
—FBENA—HE - F——F ==+ —
H 42 H LA IR 3588 2 -G 008 4 R R 42 191
ELRF A At YRR IE 2 3 R A 2R A
B KIE 7,000,000 00 » 4 B B AE H Y
S Ath, JEE AR TR 4 A ST {ELA T 454,000,000 35
TG > JYHERG B 2R29 7% E o

81
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Ao A 2 e P

For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 #%& ~F——4E H =+ H [R4E

17. BALANCES WITH A FORMER SUBSIDIARY  17. B—%i & A 6] Z &8k (4

(continued)

During the year, an impairment loss of approximately FN S BERE _E—FE A =1T—H
HK$842,000, in respect of the said balance, was recognised for the 2 BRTH (56,083,000 0 > BLAR 5 0 # 35 3K
difference between the carrying amount as at 31st October, 2010 AR L R 49 29.7% 5T 5 2 T R AR B 4
of HK$6,083,000 and the discounting effect of the expected future TR PTH B Y R > MERRAT B L A R
cash flow at the rate of approximately 29.7% according to the A 6 5 18 49 842,000 7T - t & — &
rescheduled repayment term. From 31st October, 2010, the Group FHA=1—HlE > A%EREEREH
had received repayment of HK$2,300,000 from TFIL according Wiz [91 5% 452,300,000 9 70 2 #2352
to schedule and recognised imputed interest income of A E I A 88,0008k T o i ——4EP
HK$88,000. The carrying amount at 30th April, 2011 was H =1 H Z B {E £ 3,029,000 76 > HH
HK$3,029,000, of which HK$2,035,000 and HK$994,000 was 2,035,000 7C 12994,000 95 7T 43 7l 55 48 2% Tk
classified as current and non-current respectively. B N IR o

In addition to the above, an impairment loss of HK$1,500,000 B b SCRTal E A > B AR R AR & I
(2010: Nil) has been provided as full impairment of another AT B ) BB AR o3 — S5 B A 1 A O (E
balance with TFIL which was included in deposits and TEIBEHE1,500,0004 0 (K —F4E © ) o

prepayments in the prior year.

18. INVENTORIES 18. #8]

2010 1st May, 2009
“EENE
TR fLH—H

HK$°000 HK$000
T IT TH#EIT

Raw materials and consumables  JEFTBL & I FE 5 32,942 24,102 19,847
Work in progress 2RRALT 6,814 6,142 4,093
Finished goods B 6,363 2,444 2,629

46,121 32,688 26,569
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables & o WS A
Less: Allowance for bad and W ORI

doubtful debts

JREN— FRHTH A Fl 2
subsidiary — due within I — — 4N
one year (Note 17) (Mf7E17)

Others HoAtly

Receivable from a former

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to
its trade customers. The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for bad and doubtful debts presented
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

Within 30 days 30H A

Between 31 and 60 days 31%260H
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H
Over 90 days 90H A

.

19, RS B Il Mok

2011 2010 Ist May, 2009
e

— R RA—H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T#x TT TH#TT

63,519 68,562 32,099

(277) (266) 877)

63,242 68,296 31,222

2,035 5,958 1,800
445 1,875 986

65,722 76,129 34,008

ARG TR FF 25 A F30%90
oo B Hc 0 T A R ks > B2 5 R WS T A
BRI SRR B 5 H 2RI M T

2010

e
HK$’000
T

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will apply an
internal credit assessment policy to assess the potential customer’s
credit quality and define credit limits by customer. Management
closely monitors the credit quality of trade receivables. Included
in the Group’s trade receivable balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$19,507,000 (2010: HK$14,318,000) which
are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not
provided for impairment loss, as there is no significant change in
credit quality and the amounts still considered recoverable based
on historical payment experience. The Group does not hold any
collateral or credit enhancements over these balances.

o8

AT & F AT > AR S e AT N
WS TR EOR SRR 2R
RIWHFTHEESEF 2 EEHE - g%
VIERE 5 BICKIEZ G REE - A4F
[ 5 e K TR &5 R v > B R T AR(E
19,507,000 70 ( —F—F4 : 14,318,000
J6) AR H B o e SR RN
HOR s > ORI A AT A K
TEATH W8 25 P LA IR] > BT DA A 45 [ NI 4 3
I BRSO TR W (B R R B o AS SR G
SR L B A R R A A TR SO AT A
MR e
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——4 A =+ H L4

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)  19. B 5 K oAb ME Bk B (450)

The following is an aged analysis of trade debtors which are past L3 A I 40 3 (L 2 B ) MR AR TR 2 B
due but not impaired: MR

2011 2010
S e

HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tt

Within 90 days w90 H A 18,102
Over 90 days 90H LAk 1,405
19,507
Based on the historical experience of the Group, trade receivables R A 4R ] 2 & By > O id BAE N I ek (E >
which are past due but not impaired are generally recoverable. B 5 e 2 TE — i n] DAk [A] o
The following is the movement in the allowance for bad and SRR BT
doubtful debts:

2011 2010
SR CE R
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T

At beginning of year R 266
Impairment losses recognised CUHERR I (BN 18 168
Reversal of allowance for bad and SRR g )

doubtful debts (157)
Foreign exchange translation gains SN =
Atend of year JINCES
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——40 A =+ H L4

20. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. W pEaE B

2011 2010 1st May, 2009
SEFENGE
S e i —H

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
T#x T THTT

i B AR IR

Listed equity securities in

Hong Kong, at fair value A TE 2,991 4,785 4,272
Listed equity securities outside Fs LA s T A
Hong Kong, at fair value I A TE -
4,785 4,272

At the end of the reporting period, the available-for-sale AR AT AN RO o R AEEE B A
investments are stated at fair value, which have been determined {HYIE > 2% 16 BT I B A E R -
based on bid prices quoted in an active market.
Particulars of the investee company at 30th April, 2011 are as G AR —F——FMHA =+ HZ5F

follows: TEWTF

Proportion of

nominal value of
Place of Class of issued share capital
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held held by the Group
A4 P
Piki CEATRA
sl 3 ERX-S 2) JBe 2 53 i ¥ e 45l
MelcoLot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of network Ordinary shares 3.4%
(“Melco”) PE2RS infrastructure solutions A %
B A TR H] and services
(THTEERE ) PR Ak SE g i R T 2 K
s

85
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % ~F——4 A =+ H L4

20.

21.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20. BERE B ()
(continued)
Particulars of the investee company at 30th April, 2010 are as P E A RN —F—FEMA =+ HZ5F
follows: Hwr
Proportion of
nominal value of
Place of Class of issued share capital
Name of company incorporation Principal activities shares held held by the Group
A AR 1 B $¢
Pi¥ef AT RA
sl 3 B> 20 JBe iy 2 300 i A Be il
MelcoLot Limited Cayman Islands Provision of network Ordinary shares 3.4%
(“Melco™) Bl RES infrastructure solutions S
HEIREA R A and services
([HrEEF ) PR AR B R YT 2 I
IR
ASAT (Note) Cayman Islands Provision of assembly and Ordinary shares 43.22%
SRS (W) R e testing of integrated gl
circuits in the PRC
A F R AR TR 2 i S
TR
Note:  As described in Note 15 to the consolidated financial statements, AL : SN AR A BB R I s 1Sl > AR R

according to the Grand Court Order of Cayman Islands, ASAT
was dissolved on 22nd October, 2010. The Group’s interest in the
available-for-sale investment was derecognised at the end of the
reporting period. No gain or loss has been recognised upon

derecognition.

In the prior year, ASAT’s ADS traded on the Over-the-Counter
Bulletin Board under the symbol “ASTTY.PK”.

SHEREBNES > BRXOR =%
—HAE T T H R e ARSI AT
B 15 P i HE A 7 0 At 0 ] 45 PRI
HCIRTHERR o A 1l e I S 20l R A (T 4

Sz
fm. ©

AR SR SC 2 T RE B R L
[ASTTY.PKJZACHETE LB 55158 5 ik
TEME -

Melco is a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of TEIRE R E B A S A RA R A%
the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The management M BT o I TE R — 4R R
expect that the investment will be disposed of within one year. AR -

BANK BALANCES AND CASH 21. SUTER KBS

The bank balances of the Group carried at prevailing market AR B 2 SRAT A BR AL 4R 0.01% 20.5% (=
interest rates ranging from 0.01% to 0.5% (2010: 0.01% to 0.36%) F—FF 1 0.01%20.36%) Z BT R %
per annum. FTE e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the Year Ended 30th April, 2011 # % —F——40 A =+ H L4

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, B8 BB KEAT R
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented B 5 MEAT TR A SR 45 W ] &5 R R e B8 2R H
based on the invoice date at the end of the reporting period: HAEH 2 BRES AT an T

2011 2010 1st May, 2009

e e

HK$000 HK$°000 HK$000
T#L TIT TIT

Trade payables B 5 REAT R IA
Within 30 days 30H N 10,187 10,029 2,726
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 6,855 7,875 2,033
Between 61 and 90 days 61%90H 3,705 2,903 682
Over 90 days 90H L E 8,827 5,162 2,506
29,574 25,969 7,947
Other payables oAb HEAT 2B 14,462 9,027 5,029
44,036 34,996 12,976
The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30 to 90 WE 2 EEA30E90H o A4 E A it
days. The Group has financial risk management policies in place s B R o R T A E AT I Sl
to ensure that all payables within the credit timeframe. A AR o
23. TRUST RECEIPT LOANS AND BILL 23. e R Bk B A R bR
PAYABLES

2011 2010 1st May, 2009
B

e HifA—H
HKS$°000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
Tl il Tl

Secured trust receipt loans A HAME TR R 12,225 2,772 1,547
Bill payables JREAT SR 1,133 - 1,402
13,358 2,772 2,949
At the end of the reporting period, bill payables are non-interest TR U A RO - AT SRR AR
bearing and aged within 30 days. HRES 2530 H AR ©
Trust receipt loans carry interest and the effective interest rates R R AR > HE AR (%
(which are also equal to contracted interest rates) range from 2.5% G HTRIE) A T EF2.5% 2 6% (—F—F
to 6% (2010: 6% to 7%) per annum. i 6%ET%) °
Trust receipt loans as at 30th April, 201 1are secured by the BE L ——4FENA =1 HZE g
Group’s guarantee. A A CRAE R -
Trust receipt loans as at 30th April, 2010 are secured by property, HEZE-LFEWNHA =+ HZELIREE
plant and equipment with a carrying value of HK$5,236,000. SR LA BR T {5 45 5,236,000k 7T 2 4 3 - 1 a%

LM VEHEAT o
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24. BORROWINGS 24, fitk

2010 1st May, 2009
ey i

TR HHA—H
HK$000 HKS$000

TH0 T-HsI0
(Restated) (Restated)
(E%1) (F51)

Bank loans repayable within JHIR— N IR Z 84T

one year B = 11,358
Unsecured bank loan ( Note a) AP SRS T &K (M ita) 2,949 6,000
Collateralised borrowings (Note b) A HSIHFEEE (B 32b) 4,837 -
Loans from a director repayable ~ JEIZER(ER Y — B EH

on demand (Note ¢) YK (Mt atc) 10,539 10,539

18,325 27,897
Unsecured loans R R R 13,488 16,539
Secured loan AR 4,837 11,358
18,325 27,897
Carrying amount repayable: JEAST R AR T
On demand or within one year JAFR B R B — AR
P 18,325
More than one year, but not et i R ERINTTEIR
exceeding two years
Included in amount shown under  #H A B & (578

current liabilities: A
Carrying amount of bank loans 1,5 A] B IRF B R A& 1R 16K

that are repayable within HIERA— RN )

one year but contain TR

a repayment on demand clause
Carrying amount of bank loans {17 1] BERFE R E ER K

that are repayable more than HAR—F R R

one year but contain AT eI

a repayment on demand clause

Notes: i

(a) The bank loans are unsecured and bear interest at Hong Kong (a)  SRATSEE MEHE A ~ 45 75 06 e P AR 5
prime rate plus 0.5% per annum and the best lending rate minus @%O.S%U&ﬁaﬁ@%ﬁ?ﬂﬂ%ﬁl YowtE o
1%. The weighted average effective interest rate on the bank loan SRAT B 2 NHET- 34 B B R 3R 2 9 4F 5.3%
is 5.3% per annum (2010: 5.8% per annum). (ZR—RAF  FAES5.8%) °

(b) Secured by a charge over certain of the Group’s trade receivables, (b) A< 4 [ 2 F W 1 {E 4% 3,583,000 95 7T ( —
with a carrying value of HK$3,583,000 (2010: Nil). §—$$ ) 2 B G BEMGRIE Y PR VR

(c) The loans are advanced from Mr. Li Tung Lok, a director and a (c) E&EHJimh ZIK/L\\ A HE I ER R E L
substantial shareholder of the Company and are interest-free, AT S Byt s G R R AR o
unsecured and repayable on demand. Subsequent to 30th April, W oF——AFMA =T HAE - EE $ [F] =
2011, the director has agreed not to demand the repayment in full A T — TAER H T B 2 BTE K
or in part of the loans due from the Group on or before 20th PE IR 45 X 2 2 B o B0
June, 2012.
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25. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

The Group leased certain plant and machinery and motor vehicles
under finance leases. The average lease term is 2 years (2010: 2
years). The interest rates underlying the obligations under finance
leases are fixed at respective contract dates and range from 3.25%
t0 4.25% (2010: 4.25% per annum).

25.

A LA RS

AL ER PR RVCE A A A TR - R
FAREE o SPIHA) B R AT (B A
WAFE) o AR B RVE FLATRYE 2 FIRIR &5 4
H AR E BB AE3 25% B 4.25% A5 (- % —
TAF  BFAF4.25%) o

Amounts payable under
finance leases

Within one year
In more than one year and
not more than two years

Present value of minimum
lease payments
BARALEE S th 2 B
2011 2010
SRAE T
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#x T

Minimum lease payments

SR S
2011

2010
L
HK$°000
T

=
HK$000
T

LT degiibd] SR e ]

—AFN
i — AR DT W AR

1,431 338 308

274 226

Less: future finance charges

1,705
(68)

564

BB AR B S (37

Present value of lease obligation

FHARIS 2 BE 1,637 527

Less: Amount due for
settlement within
12 months (shown
under current
liabilities)

Amount due for settlement
after 12 months

Included in amount shown
under current liabilities:

Obligation that are repayable
within one year but
contain a repayment on
demand clause

Obligation that are repayable
more than one year but
contain a repayment on
demand clause

B R A R
I (FIRE)
ARIAT)

JER T AR R
H

Gy

e

A AR B & FH T
I

A5 T B IR SR AR R
HIHR A R 2R
1

AL AT BB 2R R R
HZRR R — AR AR fHR
IR

A A B R B ORI LUIR T (E B

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the
leased assets with a carrying amount of HK$2,488,000 (2010:
HK$613,000).

2,488,000 G ( —F —E4E © 613,000 7T)
Z G ARG -
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26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. AR

Number of shares Nominal Value

Jebr ¥ H
2011 2010

R %R
HK$'000 HK$000
T#x T

Authorised: HE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each A AR T
At beginning and end of year 0.0875 7T 2 - i S 1,500,000,000 120,000 120,000

Redeemable preference shares of BT (150,025 702 1T o]

HK$0.02 each B 500,000,000 500,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: CET AR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each AR IR T E0.08H: 7T
At beginning of year L 767,373,549 767,353,549
Issue upon exercise of options AT R A RN 1T - 20,000 2
Atend of year & 767,373,549
27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 27. BB
At the end of the reporting period and during the year, deferred R A RN S AR - AR B A A
tax liabilities (assets) have been recognised in respect of the A T I 2 R AR R AR A B TH A (B ) -

temporary differences attributable to the following:

Accelerated
tax depreciation Tax losses Total
ImE BT BLBs e A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
THETT THETC THTC
At 1st May, 2009 MZEENFERA—H 2,012 (2,012) -
Charge (credit) to consolidated R 4F & R MHILARE
statement of comprehensive 0Bk (FFA)
income 73 (73) -
At 30th April, 2010 R —FFMA =11 2,085 (2,085) -
Charge (credit) to consolidated A 4F& 2 AIHRE
statement of comprehensive Bk (FEA)
income 548 (547) 1
At 30th April, 2011 R T ——FNA=+H 2,633 (2,632) 1
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27. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 27. EREBEE A (40
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax AR A4S R > AEEAGREH 2
losses of HK$504,165,000 (2010: HK$495,964,000) available for 5 5 18 504,165,000 7 T ( & — T4
offset against future profits. A deferred tax asset has been 495,964,0007 7T ) °] FVEHE 85 A A i A -
recognised in respect of HK$15,950,000 (2010: HK$12,635,000) i a% 55 e 15 e R SE B JH 7 15,950,000
of such losses. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect ot ( F—F4FE 1 12,635,000 96) >
of the remaining HK$488,215,000 (2010: HK$483,329,000) due to By A e 3 Y I R A i A 1 Sl AR Al G £
the unpredictability of future profit streams. Tax losses may be 488,215,000 70 ( —F—Z4F ¢ 483,329,000
carried forward indefinitely. W50 MERRIR AE B TR T 2 o RS R 4R FT SRR

Hghw .

28. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION 28. FEIEBERY
During the year, the Group entered into finance lease FER G REFEMFTHRERBEMES
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a 2,144,000 7T (—F — %4 : 623,000 C)
total capital value at the inception of the leases of HK$2,144,000 W ~ WA B ET SR E R A P o

(2010: HK$623,000).

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29. HARIE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had outstanding ARG IR 45 R > AEEAE KRBT ZE
capital commitments as follows: ATRIET -

2010
e

HK$000
T

A BRI R S RT A E R

Capital expenditure in respect of

acquisition of property, plant and TEAEA B R
equipment contracted for but not B - B
provided in the consolidated A EEABH S

financial statements

T A
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30. LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. RBI&RYE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments AR A A5 R > AR FR IR B A A
in respect of premises for future minimum lease payments under TRAGE A A 2 AR AR B S th 2
operating leases, which fall due as follows: FWAWE

2010
e

HK$000
TFHsoo

Within one year —4ERN 8,710
In the second to fifth year inclusive BRI (U W) 32,168
Over five years R A LA 47,246

88,124 105,597

Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty years for certain A T AEESRM AR PR S o A
production facilities in the PRC and terms of one to two years for TAEMATER > AR TR Rl — =
other premises with fixed monthly rentals. WAEARIARE R o 3 e g ] e AR A o

31. RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES 31. Bk KAEE Lk

The Group participates in two defined contribution schemes A 42 [ 2 B A S8 AL KRB - 20 R A AR
which are an Employee Retirement Scheme registered under the PR IR KT B 19 550 2 IR B AR ART 31
Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance (the “ORSO (MHkERARTEH ) Bk —F X FFE+ A
Scheme™) and a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF R 88 o P o 4 T B 491 % o7 2 o T
Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident Fund AR EE B (A es# ) - ZER#HZ
Ordinance in December 2000. The assets of these schemes are held A Z G N B T DS AL B A [
separately from those of the Group in funds under the control of BB o

trustees.

All full time employees are eligible to join the ORSO Scheme after JIT A A AR BT A 1 5 A 4R N = H
completion of three continuous months of service with the Group 1526 Gk 2 R SERIRFEH] - S w] g4
and opt to contribute a fixed percentage of 3% or 5% of their Fie LA H #r 2 3% 8K 5% I8 € A 43 AR H Al
monthly basic salary whereas the Group contributes an equivalent Ko T ASSE [ B DA [R] 4 B 2w 1 B
amount to that scheme. After December 2000, all employees PR o N BEFF T AE > TAEBEE
exceeding a specified income range are required to join the MPF 52 WA B 2 B B ¥ 7H 2 BLIR AR B R
Scheme and contribute a fixed percentage (currently 5%) of their B HeA B A U A 2 [ E A 4 (BLRE
relevant income but cap at a maximum amount of HK$1,000 per 55 5%) B EEEI A HE R > ML K R A A
month to the scheme, which contribution is matched by the A 1,000 50 > 1 A4 9 I LAAH [ 4 38 0
Group. For employees joining both schemes, the total BERR o B S B M E R B S
contributions made by each of the Group and the employees AL TR B A5 B 2 M A A
which exceed the mandatory contributions required by the MPF w3 BT KR E o A e A R R R
Scheme are paid to the ORSO Scheme as voluntary contribution. # o MRy B -
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31.

32.

33.

—4EH =+ H IR

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES 31.

(continued)

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-
managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the PRC
government. The Group is required to contribute certain
percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the specified
contributions.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year ended 30th April,
2011 made by the Group amounted to HK$2,460,000 (2010:
HKS$2,304,000).

PLEDGED ASSETS 32.

As disclosed in Notes 23, 24 and 25, at 30th April, 2011, plant and
equipment with a carrying value of HK$2,488,000 (2010:
HK$5,849,000) and trade receivables with a carrying value of
HK$3,583,000 (2010: Nil) were pledged to secure certain banking
facilities, bank loans and finance leases granted to the Group.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  33.

Equity-settled share option scheme:

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted
pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 29th November,
2006. The purpose of the Scheme is to provide the eligible persons
(“Eligible Persons”) as defined in the Scheme with the opportunity
to acquire interests in the Company and to encourage the Eligible
Persons to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board of Directors of the Company may grant
options to Eligible Persons, including, but not limited to, the
full-time employees or directors (excluding Mr. Li Tung Lok) of
the Company and subsidiaries (the “Eligible Employee(s)”) or his
or her associate.

A share option granted by the Company at nil consideration is
exercisable at any time for a period determined by its directors
which shall not be later than the day immediately preceding the
fifth anniversary of the date of grant, where the acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein) of the
option under the Scheme shall be determined by the Board of
Directors but shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per share as stated in the
daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a business day; or (iii) the average closing price per
share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options.

WK R % ekl )

AR 2 B R B 1 E 2 B O A B
Z BB IRARARE Rt # o AR B AR IR AR
AREBIE 3 2 A T o B2 1k
LA B A7 B AR A o A< 4 AR PR Rl
IR A R E K

BME_E——FENH =1+ 1 IHERE K4
19 ) e AR A 3 5 2,460,00095 76 (—
E—FAE 1 2.304,000887C) ©

j gz %
A EE23 ~ 24 B 2SFT PR o A R ——
FE A= H > BRIA{E2,488,000 00 (&
— AR 15,849,000 70) 2 B M st DL &
W M {E3,583,000% 00 ( % —F4E - ) 2
Y o U A C KA DU T AR EE
ZHETRATRVE ~ SRAT R R KRG LAY -

PAIBe A 2 2 8 2 Ak 28 B
A 5 B W S )

RER —FFREL—H LB ERZ
PR R S o A TR A B P T ) (T 5%
FHEl]) o R BES TA R E L&
B AL (T 5 ERA L) e OEA LN
HESE > S A B L AR F RO
FOREH A i O R T A T R 2 fH
{H o AAFEEG A8 G A LRI
JEHE > T %% & B LS (EARRIR)
Ay 7] B FE M o ) 2 A A B EEE R OR
fER A ([ G EHKER ) SR
At e

Ay T AR 7 A i 2 B A my R R
it FE 2 W TH] RO BB IRF AT (8 > B % AT (8 30 AN T
B BT FO SR TOE AR R — A T
A H R R R PR 2 HOR28 H o R
R RZ P % P 2 A B (e AR g
At B 2 BUEME AR ) g A AT
JE o AHR AR A RAT B d5e e 4B (1) S A T
(B 5 ()RR A AR ESER) B i
e fE 28 i 910 4 Sl i 8 5 B B4R
S T AR 1 S0 T A 2 G S P H
FION T E
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  33. DABA R2EuEZ A 3K 38 5 ()

(continued)

As at 30th April, 2011, an aggregate of 33,303,250 share options Ao E——ENHA =10 REZEER
granted under the Scheme remained outstanding representing 12 & 3£33,303,250 0 & B HE Sy AT AR ATE
4.3% of the issued share capital of the Company. The maximum AHE A AN B 2B AT IEA 2 4.3% © iR R%
number of shares in respect of which the options may be granted w1 EA% 2 W R HE BT v B % 10 B i B E AN
under the Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital B AN F AR ST E S B 2 B 8T
of the Company at the date of approval of the Scheme. However, JREAS10% o SR > BB A AR AT (g RO A
the total maximum number of shares which may be issued upon AT AH T AT AT 2 O B v AR B > R A5 a
exercise of all outstanding share options must not exceed 30% of RN TR Z CEATIRA30% o REEALN
the issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The AR e > AT AT 1248 A AT A
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted to AT A 90 7 H5% ST A8 2 18 e A iir 95 T 22 45y
any one grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed HH > AR EEAL R B EERR D H
1% of the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month period WIRZ 1248 A W 2 2 BT RN 1% © i
up to and including the proposed date of grant, without prior B N 2 AR AT B T R A AT AR
approval from the Company’s shareholders. No option shall be 17 %h{%%éﬁfL(a) WA B IR B
granted to the Eligible Persons if the aggregate value of shares T ) HE R 2 AR AR SRS I (b) O AT AT HoAth
which may be subscribed in respect of outstanding options exceed TH UL 7 ) 5,000,0009 SO B & 55 & 5 — ek
(a) in case of an Eligible Employee, 5 times of his or her then gross AR 15 B0 T HEAE AT A A R o HIRAS
annual salary and (b) in any other cases, HK$5 million, or any 1% 5 s N L3 b IR -

other amount approved by the Board of Directors either generally
or on a case by case basis.

The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share T RV R E I AR B TR A ) B
options held by the directors and employees during the year: TR 2 s
Outstanding OQutstanding
Exercise at Ist May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Option type Date of grant price 2010 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2011
REB—RAE RoF——4
HA—H SEM ST WA=+H
S B HERU il M itid ] AT il [&5fid [REEL3 AL
HKS
T
Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
#H REEZLELA+—H
3rd December, 2009 0.455 1,890,000 - - - 1,890,000
REFENEHZA=H
Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 13,500,000 - - (75,000) 13,425,000
E& RERELERA+—H
3rd December, 2009 0.455 17,305,750 - - (2,017,500) 15,288,250

REEENFET A=A

35,395,750 - - (2,092,500) 33,303,250
Exercisable at theend of ~ FAELEIRF AT F7{ili
the year 33,303,250
Weighted average exercise Ml E-F-447 i (€
price HK$0.567%0 - - HKS0464#C  HKS0.574i#50
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  33. DAB R2EuEZ A 3K 38 5 ()

(continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s share YRR AR B TR AN T RS IR R
options held by the directors and employees during prior year: KAEZ S5E)
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at 1st May, Movements during the year at 30th April,
Option type Date of grant price 2009 Granted Exercised Forfeited 2010
REZRNAE RER—B4
HiH—H fENEE) WA=+H
Jb IR HERU BipH b AL il AT 223 HALTHE
HKS$
Directors 11th May, 2007 0.70 2,700,000 - - - 2,700,000
#H REERLELA+—H
3rd December, 2009 0.455 - 1,890,000 - - 1,890,000

REFEFNEFT A=A

Employees 11th May, 2007 0.70 16,425,000 - - (2,925,000) 13,500,000
fEg REFELFELA+—H
3rd December, 2009 0.455 - 17,599,750 (20,000) (274,000) 17,305,750

REFEFNFET A=A

19,125,000 19,489,750 (20,000 (3,199,000) 35,395,750
Exercisable at theend of ~ FAFE4EIF Al f7{ili
the year 28,990,500
Weighted average exercise A TH417 418
price HKS$0.70#70  HKS0455#C  HKS0.455itc  HKS0.679i5c  HKS0.567#5 G
Share options were granted on 11th May, 2007 and 3rd ARNARZERZLERA+— AL ZFF
December, 2009 to different counterparties. Two-third of total U+ H Z H AN 1 28 5 3 75 12 1
share options can be exercised at any time from the date of JBOHE o W] T 4 A S JRRE UL B IR AT 4
acceptance whereas one-third of total share options can be RS RE 2 =4y — > MR 1 B R E 2
exercised on and after the first anniversary of the grant date, B R AR AT 2R =
provided the grantee has been in continuous employment with the Ay WA BRI NEE AR A
Group for one year, until the date immediately preceding the fifth W—4F > BE B L B2 56 A
anniversary of the grant date. The fair values of the options AT — H 2 1k o BT 3 S K O
determined at the grant dates of 11th May, 2007 and 3rd HERZH B - FFELFERL] —H R
December, 2009 using the binomial model were approximately FEEIFTH=HZAFE A4 5
HKS$5 million and HK$4 million respectively. 5,000,000 7T 524,000,000 T °
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33. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS  33. DABf R2EueZ A 3K 28 5 (40)

(continued)
The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair values TR ORE P (E R 3R 2 s T
of share options:

Grant date on

3rd December,
2009
s H
ZEENAE
+-H=H
Closing price of the Company’s shares AL BB AR H A Wi
on grant date HKS$0.455%#: ¢
Exercise price AT {AE HK$0.455%5 ¢
Risk-free interest rate e B AR 1.548%
Option life I S 30 4to 5 yearstf:
Expected volatility TR s 75.5%
Expected dividend yield AR S % 0%
Expected volatility was determined by using the historical TSI R T LA AT I O R 2 DU AF R R
volatility of the Company’s share price over the previous four and AR Z AN R AR I IR T E o

five years prior to the issuance of share option.

The binomial model has been used to estimate the fair value of the RN AR T SOBE AN R 2 AR
options. The variables and assumptions used in computing the {H o w5 A HE N - R 37 1 2 S B A AR
fair values of the share options are based on the directors’ best BB B AR FT AR L o B R
estimates. The value of an option varies with different variables of P LU E NG AV S )
certain subjective assumptions. In relation to the share options Mok s o AR B AT Z ERE > &
granted by the Company, the Group recognised the total expense LR E T ——FEWH =+ H IR4EF
of HK$750,000 in staff costs for the year ended 30th April, 2011 T8 B T A 2 S8 BH 32 750,00095 o0 (— % —
(2010: HK$3,010,000). F4F 1 3,010,0004570) ©
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 34. BB
In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered into the W H B> A AL R W AT T
following transactions with related party: 5152
(A)  ASAT GROUP (A)  SARSCHE M

2011 2010
S

HK$°000 HK$000
T Tt

Sales of integrated circuit leadframes, — $4 545 AL 5| SRHE - BIBAAE
heatsinks and stiffeners K mad i

Interest income for convertible AR PR ST AR A
preferred shares

(B)  Interest-free loans are obtained from a director, as (B) m—#ZEFEWEZREER > FH1H
disclosed in Note 24. TR EE 24 75 o

(C)  COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT (C) FEHEAMMABZHM
PERSONNEL
The remuneration of directors and other members of key O HoAth E BB AN 2
management during the year as follows: HEUWT -

2011 2010
R e

HK$000 HK$°000
Tt T

Salaries Hide 5,145
Retirement benefit schemes IRARAR A 203
Share-based payments DA A5y 72y e 2 A5 30 200
5,548
The remuneration of directors and key management is HREREFEEMAB M4 > Jith
determined by the remuneration committee having regard B2z B w2 AN AN R BT 5
to the performance of individuals and market trends. PAEMEE o
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35. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 35. BEWEA AR

SUBSIDIARIES

The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s AN BARNFN T —— R T —FE
subsidiaries as at 30th April, 2011 and 2010 which principally WA=+ HFEREAREE K5 BE
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The directors HEBEZMEATRGEE > FERL > I
are of the opinion that a full list of all the subsidiaries will be of FIr A B N 7 2 2 B R T o BRIE
excessive length. These subsidiaries operate principally in the FITHe > w255 B AN w32 e ko
place of incorporation unless otherwise indicated. o BEREAE o

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capital/
issued share capital held by
RN AR T AT RAR L i

Place of establishment/ Paid up registered capital/
Name of subsidiary incorporation Principal activities Issued share capital
B A Company subsidiary
WBi v £ B/ R CEfTA AR Hiei 2+
2011 2 2010
B 2% FIE

The Industrial Investment Cayman Islands Investment holding 2,050 ordinary shares of HKS1 each 97.56
Company Limited HEHE g 2050 (L C 2 Tt
QPL (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong Investment holding 408,000,772 ordinary shares -
WELFEHRAT Fi e of HKS$0.04 each
408,000,772 BB BT (60,047 1T
ZEEmR
QPL Limited ( Note a) Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of 2 ordinary shares of HKS! each and 100
WEARAR (Hita) Fik integrated circuit leadframes, 1,000 non-voting deferred shares
heatsinks and stiffeners of HKS1 each (Note b)
B SR R IAE DRI (1 e KA 1,000
AR B BIRE(HEB T BT
it (Hizts)
QPL (US) Inc. United States of Distribution of integrated 150,603 ordinary shares of 336
America circuit leadframes and 10 par value, paid up to
EE investment holding USD4,071,281
SRR RIE RS 150,603 AR
ik EAIRA4071 8%
FHET (I ARAR PRC Distribution of stamped USD3,000,000 100
(Note o) (Hfite) F1 leadframes and moulds 3,000,000 ¢
THRIER RAE S TR
Notes: iria
(a) Operating principally in the PRC. (a) TR AR
(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are practically (b) Efj AL FFREAT 2RI Ry > B LG A
of no economic value. KEPRELE o
(c) A foreign wholly-owned corporate. (c) ThOM A -
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end BEARL > MR A F AT AT ] (RS 7
of the year. I5 o
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36. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL 36. AN ) W B ORI B
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

2011 2010
S e

HK$°000 HK$°000
T THT

Other receivables oA EYGEIE 994 -
Interests in subsidiaries R 2> T HE 25 41,287 40,864

Available-for-sale investments EIRG S ks itd <y 2,991 4,785
Amount due from subsidiaries JRE WS g 2 =) A 49,400 56,388
Other current assets HoAth 5 B 2,782 6,417
Borrowings R (10,539) (10,539)
Other current liabilities oAby ) & ] (1,605) (678)

85,310
Share capital A 61,390
Share premium and reserves e 3 58 2 fets 23,920

85,310




FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 2 W2

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial years, as DUT Al sk 0 AL B O MR E RS MR
extracted from the Group’s published audited consolidated financial A [ 48 2 R AR A TS A
statements, are set out below:

TURNOVER AND (LOSS) PROFIT FOR BB WU AT BB ROMEAY Ol 1) i )
THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

For the year ended 30th April,
BRENH=1-H LR E
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

“EBLE —FTNE —TTAE ST-BF CR—F
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
FiT BT TET Tt Tl

Turnover B 308,848 337,661 275,441 325,287 353,998
(Loss) profit before taxation Wi (18 ) i6 7] (101,299) (43,052) (94,644) 25,081 (12,125)
Taxation credit (charge) FUIEHL S (i) 20,743 (1,080) (1,207) (1,530) (1,028)
(Loss) profit for the year AR IROR S

attributable to shareholders (548 i A1) (80,556) (44,132) (95,851) 23,551 (13,153)

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2011 4§
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ASSETS AND LIABILITIES s K

At 30th April,
BREMH =1 H k4R
2008 2009 2010
: VE ZRFNE ZF—F4F
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$000
THIT TH#IT THIT T
(Restated) (Restated) (Restated)
(#51) (H#51) (F#51)
Property, plant and equipment L/E W T Y S 161,708 122,042 52,973 51,072
Interest in an associate g\ aHERS - - - -
Investment in convertible AR
preferred shares — loan portion — B - - - -
Auvailable-for-sale investments AL - - - -
Derivative financial instruments ~ fi74= 4@ T B - 12,923 1,211 -
Other receivable HAb e IR - - 4,706 -
Advance payment for property,  #iHIE - BEEE M2
plant and equipment K - - - -
Current assets B EE 205,612 169,652 97,081 141,726
Current liabilities T A (153,156) (116,781) (78,783) (88,474)
214,164 187,836 77,188 104,324
Share capital A 61,379 61,388 61,388 61,390
Share premium and reserves Aoy s 5 I feti G 147,896 122,102 11,918 39,160
Shareholders’ fund JRRE 209,275 183,490 73,306 100,550
Long term borrowings RHE 349 135 - -
Accrued expenses JRET#5 4,536 4210 3,882 3,555
Deferred taxation PEIEFL A 4 1 _ _
Obligations under finance leases il & L4715 - - - 219
214,164 187,836 77,188 104,324

100

60,066

838
128,125
(100,176)

89,847

61,390
24,965

86,355

3,229
1
262

89,847
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